YARN SYNDICATE LIMITED

EXPORTERS OF COTTON AND MANMADE FIBRE
YARNS, TEXTILES & KNITED FABRICS

CIN NO.: LST109WB1946PLCO13842

REGD. OFFICE : 86/2/4, S N BANERJEE ROAD,

1" FLOOR, FLAT NO. 2, KOLKATA — 700 014
TELEPHONE: 033-033-22652163

WEBSITE : www.yamsyndicate.in

E-MAIL : ysl@yarnsyndicate.in

Due: 3 1 AUG 2021

The General Manager

Corporate Relationship Dept.

BSE limited .
1" Floor. New Trading Ring

Rotunda Building, P J Towers

Dalal Street. Fort

Mumbai — 400 001

Re: Intimation of Annual Report Including Notice of Annual General Meeting

Dear 8irs,

Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of the Listing Regulations, please find enclosed the Annual
Report for the financial year 2020-21 along with Notice of 78th Annual General
Meeting of the members of the Company will be held on Tuesday, 28th September,
2021 at 11:00 a.m. at the registered office address of the Company at 86/2/4, S N
Banerjee Road, 1st floor, flat no. 2, Kolkata ~ 700 014,

The Annual Report along with notice of AGM are being sent electronically to the members
who have registered their email addresses either with the Company or with their
depositories.

Members may note that the pdf copy of Annual Report 2020-21 also be available on the

Company’s website www.varnsyndicate.in.
Request to kindly take the same on your records.

Yours truly,
For YARN SYNDICATE LIMITED

Rishiraj Patodia
Managing Director
DIN: 00259104
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YARN SYNDICATE LIMITED

NOTICE OF THE 75™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Regd. Office: 86/2/4, S N Banerjee Road, 1" Floor, Flat No.2, Kolkata-700014
CIN NO: L51109WEB1946PLC013842; Phone: 033 22652163;
Email 1d : ysligyarnsyndicate.in

Website ; www.yarnsyndicate.in

NOTICE is hereby given that the Seventy Fifth Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members
of Yarn Syndicate Limited will be held at the registered office of the Company at 86/2/4, 8 N
Banerjee Road, 1" Floor, Flat No.2, Kolkata-700014 on Tuesday, 28" September, 2021 at 11:00
am to transact the following business;

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Itern No 1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for
the financial vear ended 31° March, 2021, together with the Report of the Board of Directors and
the Auditors thereon,

Item No.2- Re-appointment of Mrs. Sheela Patodia

To appoint a2 Director in place of Mrs. Sheela Patodia (DIN: 00276269), who retires by rotation in
terrns of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act,2013 and being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment,

Special Busingss:
Itern No.3- Appointment of Ms, Neha Amin Merchant (DIN: 07454674), as a Woman Dhrector,
Independent & Non-Executive, of the company for a term of five consecutive years.

Toconsider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

S“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with schedule IV
and Section 161(1) read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors} Rules,
2014, and other applicable provisions, sections, rules of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any
statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), and Securities
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20135
(“SEBI LODR™) on recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, MS. Neha
Amin Merchant (DIN: 07454674) who was appointed as an Additional Woman Director (Non-
Executive & Independent) by the Board of Directors of the Company as per Section 161(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 w.e.f. 1" April, 2021 and who holds office only upto the date of this Annual
Gieneral Meeting (AGM) and who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria of
Independence as defined in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,2013 and Regulation 16(b) of
SEBI{LODR) Regulations and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing
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from a member proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as
an Woman Director (Non-Executive & Independent) of the company to hold office for a termof 5
(five) consecutive years weef 1% April, 2021 upto 31" March, 2026 and whose office shall not be
liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLYED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors{hereinafter referred to as “the Board”
which term shall be deemed to include the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Board) be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as they may in their
absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable including powers/authority to settle any
question, difficulty, doubt that may arise in respect of the matter aforesaid and to take all steps
and/ or other formalities as may be required to give effect to the above resolution.”

Item No.4- Re-appointment of Mr. Rishiraj Patodia (DIN: 00259104), as Managing Director of
the company for a term of three years.

Toconsider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution asa Special Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and approval of the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 1% April 2021 and
subject to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification or
reenactment thereof) read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant Articles of
Association of the company, approval of the members of the company be and is hereby accorded to
the reappointment of Mr Rishiraj Patedia (DIN: 00259104) as Managing Director of the company
wef 1% April, 2021 for 3 (Three) years, on terms and conditions as given in the Explanatory
statement attached to this Notice .

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the remuneration payable to Mr Rishiraj Patodia shall not exceed
the overall ceiling of the total managerial remuneration as provided under Section 197 and
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 or such other limits as may be prescribed from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year during the currency of the tenure of
Managing Director of the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company will
pay remuneratipn as per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Dilectors or its duly constituted committee be and is
hereby authorised to alter and vary the terms and conditions of appointment and / or remuneration
including annual increments effective from first day of April in respect of each financial year based
on the performance appraisal, within the scale provided the same are not exceeding the limits
specified under Section 197 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,2013 read with

Schedule V thereto.™
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(Members may please note that Proper Social Distancing Norins will be followed at the venue

of AGM and Wearing of Masks is compulsory at the venue of AGM by members. Proper
sanitization of venue will be done at all intervals)

By Order of the Board
For YARN SYNDICATE LIMITED

Bikash Chandra Chatterji
Company Secretary
Place: Registered Office;
86/2/4, 5N Banerjee Road,
1" Floor, FlatNo.2,
Kolkata- 700014

Date: 30 day of June, 2021
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NOTES:

1.

3.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY/ PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A
POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF. SUCH A PROXY/ PROXIES NEED
NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A person can act as proxy on behalf of
members not exceeding ffty (30) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of
the total share capital of the Company. However, a Member holding more than 10% of the
total issued share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single
person as Proxy for another person or sharcholder.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered
Otfice of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting. A Proxy form is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on
behalf of the companies, societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate
resolution/authority, as applicable. The Proxy-holder shall prove his identity at the time of
attending the Meeting. A proxy shall not have right to speak at AGM and shall not be
entitled to vote excepton poll,

. Corporate Members/Trusts/Societies etc. intending to send their authorised

representatives to attend the meeting are requested 1o send a duly certified copy of the
Board/Managing Committee Resolution together with the specimen signature of the
representative authonsed under the said Reselution to attend and vote on their behalf at the

Meeting.

Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to intimate changes in their
address alongwith proof of address/bank mandate to the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents (RTA), M5, R & D Infotech Private Ltd.

Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to send the intimation for change
of address / bank mandate to their respective Depository Participant.

Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint
holding in the same order of names are requested to write to the Company's RTA,
enclosing their share certificates to enable the Company to consolidate their holdings into a
single folio,

Shareholders are also requested to take immediate action to demat their shares to avail easy
liquidity since trading of shares of the Company are under compulsory demat mode as per
the regulation of SEBI.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 & Regulation 42(5) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, the
Register of Members and Share Transter Books of the Company will remain closed from
Monday, 27" September, 2021 to Tuesday, 28" September, 2021 (both days inclusive)
{both days inclusive). A person, whose name 15 recorded 1n the Register of Members orin
the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut off datei.e.,
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Tuesday, 21" September, 2021 only shall be entitled to avail the facility of either e-voting
or vating at the AGM through ballot paper.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in Securities market, Members
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts, Members
holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the R&T Agent or to the
Registered Office of the Company.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and
notify the Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible.
Members are also advised not to leave their demat accountis) dormant for long, Periodic
statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and
holdings should be verified.

In terms of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Kules, 2014 as amended effective 19th March, 2016
and Listing Regulations with stock exchange, the Resolutions proposed at this AGM will
be transacted through electronic voting system from a place other than the venue of the
Meeting (' remote e-voting “) for which purpose the Company has engaged the services of
NSDL. The Board of Directors has appointed Ms. Sweety Kapoor, Practising Company
Secretary, (FCS: 6410, COP: 5738), Kolkata as the Scrutinizer for this purpose.

Details under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the Stock Exchange in respect of the Directors seeking
re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting, forms integral part of the notice, The
Directors have furmished the requisite declaration for their re-appointment.

The facility for ballot will be available at the AGM venue for those Members who do not
cast their votes by remote evoting prior to the AGM. Members, who cast their votes by
remote e- voting prior to the AGM, may attend the meeting but will not be entitled to cast
their votes once again.

Electronic copy of the Notice and Annual Report of the 75" Annual General Meeting of
the Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with
Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are
registered with the Company/ Depository Participants{s) for communication,

Members holding shares in physical form can now avail the facility of nomination in
respect of shares held by them pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013. The prescribed Form
(Form SH 13) can be obtained from the Share Department of the Company, Members
desiring to avail this facility, may send their Nomination Form {in duplicate} duly filled in,
to the Company or its Share Transfer Agents M/s. R & D Infotech Private Limited VA,
Beltala Road, Kolkata— 700026, by quoting their respective Folio Numbers.
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14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

Members can now get their e-mail address registered with the Company if they want to
receive the notices of the Company, for holding general meetings, postal ballot and any
other purpose, through electronic mode in pursuance to 'Green Initiative' taken by the
Company.

Members may also note that the Notice of the 75" Annual General Meeting, the Annual
Report for 2021 will also be available on the Company's website: www.yarnsyndicate.in
website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the website
of NSDL- www.evoting.nsdl.com. For any communication, the shareholders may also

send requests to the Company's investor email id: ysl@vyarnsyndicate.in.

In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic members may please note that social
distancing norms will be maintained at the venue and members are requested to wear
masks. Thermal screening will be done at gate and  sanitization of the venue will be done
before the meeting. Members are requested to adhere to the norms and use of sanitizer as
required

Trading in Equity Shares of the Company is under compulsory demat trading. As per
revised Regulation 40 of SEBI(LODR) 2015 shares are transferred only in dematerialized
mode effective from 1° April, 2019 and therefore shareholders are requested to
dematerialize their existing shares held in physical form. Only requests for transmission
and transposition of securities in physical form will be accepted by the Company or its
RTA.

Voting through electronic means

1. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members/list of Beneficial
Owners as on Tuesday, 21" September, 2021, being the cut-off date, are entitled to vote
on the Resolutions set forth in this Notice, The remote e-voting period will commence
at Saturday, 25" September, 2021 at 9 A.M. and ends on Monday,27* September, 2021
ats3PM.
The voting period begins on Saturday, 25 September, 2021 at 9 A.M. and ends on
Monday, 27" September, 2021 at 5 P.M. During this period shareholders' of the
Company, helding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on
the Tuesday, 21" September, 2021 may cast their vote electronically, The e-voting
module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
20 of the Companies (Managemeut and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations
2015 (as amended), the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its
Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the
Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's

agency.

THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS
UNDER:
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(I) In terms of SEBI o, EEEI!HDICFDHCH{DIC[RIPH{IEWEH dated

er 9, 202 ‘u’ facili Liste Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Parti cipants, Shareholders are
advised to update their mobile n d email Id in their demat accounts in order to

access e-Voung facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings
for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL / NSDL is given below:

Type of Login Method
shareholders

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can
login through their existing user id and password. Option will

Tngaeyiua. be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further
Shﬂ?"’h“ldm authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
LG, https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login ~ or  visit
SEPLEG www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New
Demat mode System Myeasi.

with CDSL

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see
the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting 1s
in progress as per the information provided by company. On
chicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting
page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system ofall e-Voting Service Providers
1.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user
can visit the e-Voting service providers' website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available ar https:/ /web cdshndia.com/mveasi/Registration,

EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-
Voting link availableon W home page or
click on https:/ /evoting. cdsling E
The system waill authenticate I:hf.' user by sem:hng DTP on
repistered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account.
After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to
directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.
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Individual
Shareholders
holding
seCurities in
demat mode
with NSDL

1)

2

If you are already registered for NSDL [DeAS facility, please
visit the e-Services website of NSDL, Open web browser by
typing the following URL: https://eservices nsdl.com either on
a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon
under “Login" which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A
new screen will open, You will have to enter your User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to
see e-Yoting services, Click on “Access to e-Voting™ under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click
on company name or e-Yoting service provider name and vou
will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to
register is available at hitps.//eservices.nsdlcom.  Select
“Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at

https.//eservices nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by
typing the following URL: https://www evoting nsdl.com/
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home
page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login”
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section, A
new screen will open. You will have to enter vour User 1D (i.e.
vour sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected
to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Votung page.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and
you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period

Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities in
demat mode)
login through
their
Depository
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat
account through your Depository Participant registered with
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility, After successful login, vou
will be able 10 see e-Votng option. Once you click on e-Voting
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site
after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting
feature, Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote dunng the remote e-Voting period
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Important note; Members who are unable to retrieve User 1D/ Password are advised to

use Porget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned wehsite,

Helpdesk for Individual Sharcholders holding securities in demat mode for any
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with

Members facing any technical issue in login
can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a

request at helpdesk. evotingfmedslindia.com

CDSsL

or contact at 022- 23058738 and 22-
23058542-43,

Individual Shareholders holding
secunties in Demat mode with
MNSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login
can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a
regquest at evotingi@nsdl.co.in or call at toll
free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Login method for e-Voting for Physical sharcholders and shareholders other than individual
holding in Demat form

Step 1: Log-into NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.
Step 2: Cast your vote electromically on NSDL e-Voting system.
Deetails on Step 1 is mentioned below:

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?
i.

Ll

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.comeither on a Personal Computer or on a mobile,

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is

available under'Shareholders' section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID), your Password and a Vertfication
Code as shown on the screen. Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices Le.

IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices nsdl.com with yvour existing IDEAS login. Once you
log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, chick on e-Voting and you can
proceed to Step 2 i.e. directly to cast your vote electronically,

Your User ID details are given below

a) ForMembers who hold shares in demat account with NSDL:

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID (For example if your DFP 1D is INJ00F**
and Client ID is 12***%** then vour user [D is IN3Q(F** ] 2¥#+x),

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account with CDSL:
16 Digit Beneficiary ID (For example if your Beoeficiary [D is | 2#*##wsiiibasi® then

VOUr user T i ] 2sdrdciriiiiniia s

¢} ForMembers holding shares in Physical Form:

10
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8.

9.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the Company (For
example if Folio NMumber is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user 1D is
101456001 ***),

Your password details are given below:

a,

b.

If you are already registered for e-voting, then you can use your existing password to
login and cast your vote.

If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, vou will need to retrieve the
‘Initial Password' which was communicated to vou. Once you retrieve your Tnitial
Password', you need to enter the Tnitial Password' and the system will force you to
change your Password.

How to retrieve your 'Initial Password?

i, If your e-mail ID is registered in your demat account or with the Company, your
'initial password' is communicated to you on your email ID, Trace the email sent
to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment
1.e. a.pdf file. Open the pdf file, The password to open the .pdf file is your & digit
client ID} for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL Account or folio
number for shares held in physical form. The _pdf file contains your 'User IDY
and your Tnitial Password'.

i If your emaal ID 15 not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process
for those shareholders whose cmail ids are not registered.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial Password” or have forgotten

your Password:

a. Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding shares in your demat
account with NSIDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b. “Physical User Reset Password?"” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option
available on www.evating.nsdl.com,

¢, If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio nomber,
yvour PAN, your name and your registered address.

d. Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the

votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL,

After entering your password, click on Agree to “Terms and Conditions™ by selecting on
the check box.

MNow, you will have to click on " Login" button.

After youclick on the "Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Dretails on Step 2 is given below:
How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. Aftersuccessful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting,

"
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Clickon e-Voting. Then, click on Active Voting Cycles.

After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which
vou are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

3. Select "EVEN" of Yarn Syndicate Limited.

. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens,
. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number

of shares for which vou wish to cast vour vote and, click on “Submit” and also " Confirm™ when
prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the

8.

confirmation page.
Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote,

General Guidelines for Sharcholders:

19.

Pursuant to Section 113 of the Act, Institutional/Corporate shareholders/ (i.e. other than
Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the
relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to
scrutiniser @ rediffmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go
through the “Forgot User Detalls/P 7" or “Physical User Reset Password?” option
available on www evoting nsdl com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer to the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for
shareholders and e-voting user manual for shareholders available at the download section of
https:/ /www.evoting.nsdl.eom or call on  toll free no.: 1BN-222-990 or send a request to
evotingiwnsdl.co.n.

Process for those shareholders whose email 1ds are not registered with the depositories for
procuring user id and password and registration of email ids for e-voting for the resolutions set
out in this notice:

a) Incase shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of Sharcholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of
PAN Card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
ysliwyarnsyndicate.inor infoia@rdinfotech. net

b) In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID +
CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account
statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card)to ysl@yarnsyndicate.in orto infof@rdinfotech.net.

¢) Alternatively member may send an e-mail request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for obtaining
User ID and Password by providing the details mentioned in Point (1) or (2) as the case
may be,

12



YARN SYNDICATE LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

20.  The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of Tuesday, 21° September, 2021, Any
person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a member of the Company after
dispatch of the notice and 15 holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. Tuesday, 21" September,
2021 may obtainlogin ID and password by sending a request at ysli@yarnsyndicate in.

21. Ms. Sweety Kapoor, Practicing Company Secretary, (FCS: 6410, COP: 5738) has been
appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent
ITLATITNED.

22, The facility for voting through ballot paper will also be made available at the AGM and the
members attending the AGM who have not already cast their votes by remote evoting shall be
able 10 exercise their right at the AGM through ballot paper. Members who have cast their
votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to
cast their votes again.

23. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of Annual General Meeting, first count the votes
cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the
presence of at least two witnesses, not in the employment of the Company. The scrutinizer
shall submit the consolidated scrutinizer's report, not later than 48 hows of conclusion of the
Meeting, to the Chairman or any other person authorized by the Board. The results declared
along with the consolidated scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the website of the
Company and also be displayed on the Notice board of the Company at its registered office
and on the website of NSDL immediately after the results are declared,

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13,
2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.yarnsyndicate.in, The MNotice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock
Exchange i.e BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on
the website of NSDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system
during the AGM)

The Route map showing directions to reach the venue of AGM is given at the end of this Notice
Annexure to the Notice
Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No. 3

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of
Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 1° April, 2021 has appointed MS. NEHA AMIN
MERCHANT (DIN: 07454674) as an Additional Woman Director designated as Non-Executive
& Independent Director on the Board of Directors of the Company in terms of the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, In the opinion of the Board, she falfills the conditions specified in the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and SEBI{LODR) Regulations, 2015 for her
appointment as Independent Director of the company and is independent of the management and
whose office shall not be liable to retire by rotation. She is not debarred by SEBI, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority to be appointed as a Director of the

COMPATY.
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As per Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 Ms, Neha Amin Merchant can hold office upto the
date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Consent to act as a Director as well as disclosure for
non-disqualification as required under the Companies Act, 2013 have already been received from
Ms. Neha Amin Merchant. Ms. Neha Amin Merchant has been on the Board of Directors of our
company since April 2021, She is a Bachelors of Science of Business Administration with 13 vears
of experience in Public Relations/ Marketing, Mobile App, Investment Banking. As on the date of

Notice, Ms. Neha Amin Merchant does not hold any equity shares in the company.

Except for the appointee, Ms, Neha Amin Merchant, none other Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and their relatives are, in any way concerned or interested in resolution set out in Item no.
3 of the Notice. The Board recommends the ordinary resolution set out at Item no. 3 to the Notice
forapproval of Members,

1. Name Neha Amin Merchant
2. Date of Birth 25/01/1986
3. | Date of Appointment 01.04.2021
4. Qualifications Bachelors of Science of Business
Administration
5. Expertise in Specific Public Relations/ Marketing, Mobile App,
Functional Area Investment Banking
B. Chairman/Director of other | NA
Companics
7. | No of meetings attended for | NA
Board
8. | Shareholding in the Nil
Company
9. | Relationship with other N.A,
directors inter se
10. | Chairman/Member of Name of Committee | Membership
Committees of the Board of | Compan Type tatus
Companies of which she is a
Dlrﬁl‘jtzr: Yarn Syndicate | Audit MMember
Lid, Committee
Yarn Syndicate | Nomination Member
Lid, and
remuneration
committee
Yamn Syndicate | Stakeholders | Member
Lid. Relationship
Committee
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Item No. 4

Mr Rishiraj Patodia who was appointed Managing Director by the members to hold office upto 31"
March, 2021 is being reappointed by the Board of Directors and subject to approval of members by
way of a Special resolution pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Schedules and
Rules therewith. Keeping in view that Mr Rishiraj Patodia has rich and vared experience in the
industry and has been involved in the operations of the company over a long period of time. It
would be in the interest of the company to continue the ¢mployment of Mr Rishiraj Patodia as
Managing Director. He has been associated with the company for more than a decade and dealt
with key operations of the Company .

In terms of Corporate Governance Guidelines of the company and pursuant to the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the
company at its meeting held on 1° April, 2021 approved reappointment of Mr Rishiraj Patodia as
Managing Director designated as Executive Director of the company for a further period of 3
(Three) years we.f 1" April, 2021 subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. Mr Rishiraj Patodia is reappointed on the following terms and conditions as per
appointment letter which is available for inspection at the registered office of the company upto the
date of AGM

The terms & conditions of appointment interalia includes the following;-

1. MrPatodia re-appoiniment as a Managing Director of the Company for a further period of 3
{Three) years effective from 01/04/2021 10 31/03/2024.

2. In compliance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, his directorship is subject to
retirement by rotation.

3. Notwithstanding other provisions of this letter, the appointment may be terminated in
accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company or on failure to
meet the parameters of employment as defined in section 164(1) or on the occurrence of any
event as defined in section 167 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4. Upon termination or upon resignation for any reason, duly intimated to the Company, he will
not be entitled to any compensation for loss of office.

5. Due to COVID-19 pandemic and in the present crisis, he has given his consent to take any
remuneration during his tenure of Managing Director,

6. Your role and duties will be those normally required of a Managing Director under the
Companies Act, 2013. There are certain duties prescribed for all Directors, both Executive and
MNon-Executrve, which are fiduciary in pature and are as under:

7. In addition to the remuneration described above, the Company will, for the period of your
appointment, reimburse him for travel, hotel and other incidental expenses incurred by him in
the performance of your role and duties.
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Save and_ except Mr Rishiraj Patodia and Mrs Sheela Patodia, none of the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested
financially or otherwise in the resolution.

The Board of Directors, in the interest of the Company, commends the resolution for approval
of the members.

This explanatory statement may also be read and treated as disclosure in compliance with the
requirements under Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013

B Name Rishiraj Patodia
2. | Date of Birth 06.04.1986
3. | Date of Appointment 15.09.2008
4. | Qualifications B.Com
5. | Expertise in Specific | Expertise in Management
Functional Area
6. | Chairman/Director of other | Directorships:
Companies TR
1.Y'S Exports Limited
7. | No of meetings attended for | 5 (five)
Board
8. | Shareholding in the Company | 215500
9. | Relationship with  other | Mrs Sheela Patodia is his mother,
directors inter se
10, | Chairman/Member of | Name of Commi Membership
Committees of the Board of | Company Type Status
Companies of which she is a = :
1t etinr: Yam Syndicate | Audit _ Member
Ltd. Committee
Yam Syndicate | Stakeholders Member
Lid. Relationship
Commuittee
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Details of Director(s) seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of

the Company (Pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of

Company Secretaries of India, are furnished below:-

1. Name Sheela Patodia

2, Date of Birth 13.11.1949

Date of Appointment 01.04.2002

4. (ualifications Graduate

3. Expertise in Specific | Expertis¢ in Management
Functional Area

6. | Chairman/Director of other | Directorships:
Companies 1.¥S Exports Limited

7. | No of meetings attended for | 5 (five)
Board

8. | Sharcholding in the Company | 1302802 equity shares

9. | Relationship  with  other | Mr Rishira) Patodia is her son.
directors inter se

DISCLOSURES REQUIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH CLAUSE (B) OF SECTION II
OF PART II OF SCHEDULE V OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IN RELATION TO
ITEM NO. 3 OF THE NOTICE

I General Information

1. Nature of the Industry Yarn

2. Date of commencement of commercial 21.06.1946
production

3. In case of new compames expected date of Mot applicable

commencement of activities as per project
approved by the financial institutions
appearing in the prospectus

4. Financial Performance based on given As per Audited Financial
mdicators Eesults for the year ended.
(¥ in Rupee)
Financial Performance e Bl
Total Revenue from operations (Net) 25000 9365 42502277
Profit/ { Loss) before Interest, (1885261) (B38460) 32734387
Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation & Tax (1888261) (14608467 32734387
Profit/{Loss) before Tax (PBT) (1888261) (14608467) 6339465
Profit/({Loss) after Tax (PAT) (3463769) (13449516) 1401260
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IL

-

6. Comparative Remuneration profile

III.

Foreign Investments or
Collaborators, if any

Information about the appointee

Background details

Fast Remuneration

Recognition or awards

Job Profile and suitability

Remuneration Proposed

With merits.

Pecuniary relationship directly or
indirectly or relationship with the
Director and Key Managerial
Personnel of the managerial
personnel, if any.

Company and their relatives is
concerned or interested
financially or otherwise.

Other Information

N1l

Mr. Patodia aged about 34 years holds a
Bachelors degree . He has been associated
with the Company since long and has
expertise In management

Rs. NIL for F. Y. 2020-2021.
Nil

Mr. Patodia 15 the Managing Director in the
category of Key Managenial Personnel

He has perfect palate for yam industry which
guides in proper valuation. He is having
adequate experience in this industry with
respect 10 planning, executing long term
business plans, directing, overseeing and
managing all aspects of marketing and sales
process including forecasting and budgets and
as such shall be beneficial to the Company.

Refer to details forming part of Explanatory
Statement of Proposed Resolution.

The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee respect to industry, size of the
industry, had taken into consideration the size
and nature size of the Company, profile of the
position of business of the Company and the
proposed position and person. No comparison
as the remuneration is being waived by the
appointee,

Except Mrs, Sheela Patodia no pecuniary
relationship with any other director of the
company
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Reason for loss or inadequarte profit

Steps taken or proposed to be taken

for

Expected increase in productivity:
and

Disclosures

Yarn industry is passing through a difficult
phase. Prices of other inputs have gone up
substannally without any corresponding
increase in sale price due to factors beyond the
control of the management.

The Company is taking continuous steps
for Improvement. Improving the quality which
would help in better price realization, rationalization
of manpower and undertaking capital management
exercise to redece overall borrowing limits.

Both productivity and profitability are
expected to profits in measurable terms increase
by 5 — 10% over the tenure.

The following disclosures shall be mentioned in the Board of Directors' report under the
heading Corporate Governance, if any, attached to the Annual Report:

All elements of remuneration
package such as salary, benefits,
bonus, stock options, pension,
ete,, of all the directors

Dietails of fixed components and
performance linked incentives
along with performance criteria

service Contracts, notice period,
Severance fees

Stock option details, if any, and
whether the same has been issued
at a discount as well as the period
over which accrued and over
which exercisable

Place: Registered Office:

86/2/4, 5 N Banerjee Road,
1" Floor, Flat No.2,
Kolkata-700014

30™ June, 2021

As mentioned in Explanatory Statement.

il

The pericd of appointment as per approval

of the AGM Resolution,
Mil
By Order of the Board
For YARN SYNDICATE LIMITED
Bikash Chandra Chatterji
Company Secretary
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YARN SYNDICATE LIMITED

REPORT OF ARD OF DIRECTORS TG THE ERS

To,
The Shareholders,
Yarn Syndicate Limited.

Your Directors submit their 75" Annual Report of the company together with the Audited Accounts
for the Year ended on 31" March, 2021,

FINANCIAL RESULTS:
(amount in Rs.)
: Standalone
Feertisulics Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Revenue from operations NIL NIL
Other Income 25,000 9,363
Total Income 25,000 9,365
Total Expenses 1,913,261 14,617,832
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (1,8588,261) (14,608.467)
Tax Expense 1,575,508 1,158,951
Profit/{Loss) for the year (3,463,769) (13,449 516)
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) NIL NIL
Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) (3,463,769) {13,449 516)
DIVIDEND:

Your Dhrectors do not recommend dividend on Equity Shares for the Financial Year ended 317
March, 2021 in view of current year losses and brought forward losses.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES: Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the
General Reserves during the vear under review,

OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS

2020 was an extraordinary year and the world over business,people and organization faced
unprecendented challenges. The business environment remained challenging throughout the year.
The second wave of COVID-19 started in February 2021 in few states and there was restrictions on
free movement of people in many states . The performance of the Company is below expectations
due to the prevailing pandemic. The Directors are continually exploring other

lucrative business avenues, Since March 2020, your company has complied and continued to
comply with the COVID-19 guidelines and affirmed its readiness towards COVID-19 as set by the
Government of India with respect to the national lockdown due to the global Coronavirus Disease
pandemic, Operations restarted when the lockdown was lifted later in 2020, however, since May of
this year lockdown was again reimposed due to surge in Covid cases. Implementation of IND AS
has become applicable to the Company with effect from 1% April, 2017 and accordingly the
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financial statements for the financial year ended 31" March, 2021 have been prepared in
compliance with IND as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards ) Rules, 2015,

SHARE CAPITAL:

The paid up equity share capital remained unchanged as on 31° March, 2021 was Rs. 375 lakhs.
During the year under review, the company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor
granted stock options nor sweat equity,

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate companies,

CHANGEINNATURE OF BUSINES SIF ANY
There was no change in nature of business of the Company during the year.
COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2. BOARDOFDIRECTORS
COMPOSITION AND CATEGORY

The Board of Directors of the Company have an optimum combination of Executive,
Non-Executive and Independent Directors including Woman Director and having  requisite
knowledge and expertise in business & industry, corporate finance, taxation, legal matters, risk
management and marketing.

The Board of Directors comprises of 5 Directors that include one Independent Woman Director
whose composition is given below:

- one Promoter, Non Executive Chairperson
- one Promoter, Executive Director
- Three Independent, Non-Executive Directors including one Woman Director

The names and category of the Directors on the Board, the number of Directorships and
Committee memberships / Chairmanships held by them in other Companies during the vear
ended 31" March 2021 and as on signing of this report are given below:
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Mo, of Board Committees

, . . {other than Yarn .
Mame of Director Category of Uur-.--:ltmsh;p Syndicate Ltd) in which Eh;;.ﬁh;ﬁ“ at
i . 15 s | e |
B Chairman /
Other Chairpersons Member
Companies* Chairman/ | Member
Chairperson’ =
Promoter
Executive
Dt 1 Nil Nil 215500
Sri Rishiraj Patodia
| Promoter
smt Sheela Patodia MNon-Executive l Mil Nil 1302802
Dyirector
Jignesh Lakhamshi Shah | Independent ) ) ) )
Hil Hil Ml Mil
Upto 01.03.2021 MNon-Executive
Independent
1 Wil Mil il
Sourav Bhattacharjee Mon-Executive
Independent
Kishore Chhabria 1 Nil Mil N.A.
MNon-Executive
Independent
Meha Amin Merchant Woman Nil Nil il N.A.
Mon-Executive

*Other Directorships do not include Directorships of private limited companies, Directorship
does not include section 8 companies and foreign companies and Alternate Directorships.

*Only membership of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committes is

considered.

@Member includes Chairman/ Chairperson
None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than ten Committees and Chairman
of more than five Commuittees across all companies in which they are Dhrectors.

Mo Director is related to any other Director on the Board in terms of the definition of Relative

given under the Companies Act, 2013 except Smt Sheela Patodia & Shri Rishiraj Patodia
_Except for this there is no other pecuniary relationship or transactions of the Non-Executive

22




YARN SYNDICATE LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

Directors vis-a-vis the Company and inter-se among themselves,

The Directors of the Company do not serve as Independent Directors in more than seven listed
Companies.

BOARD PROCEDURE

The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the quarterly business and the financial
performance of the company. The yearly calendar of the meetings is finalized before the
beginning of the year and additional meetings are held whenever necessary. The Board
Meetings are generally scheduled well in advance and the notice of each Board Meeting is given
i writing to each Director. The Board papers, comprising the agenda backed by comprehensive
background information are circulated to the Directors in advance and in exceptional cases, the
same is tabled at the Board Meeting. The Board is also free to recommend the inclusion of any
matter for discussion in consultation with the Chairman, The Audit Committee and the Board
periodically reviews the status of the compliances with the applicable laws.

The Company provides the information as set out in Regulation 17 read with Part A of
Schedule IT of Listing Regulation to the Board and the Board Committees to the extent it is
applicable and relevant, Such information is submitted either as part of the agenda papers in
advance of the respective meetings or by way of presentations and discussions during the
meeting to enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively, the members of the
Board are briefed at every Board Meeting, on the overall performance of the Company.,

The Board's function is not limited to matters requiring statutorily the Board's approval. The
Board is involved in all the important decisions relating to the company and policy matters,
strategic business plans, new avenues of investment and expansion, compliance with
statutory/regulatory requirements, major accounting provisions and write-offs are considered
by the Board.

The Minutes of the Board Meetings are circulated to all Directors and are signed at subsequent
Meeting. The Minutes of Audit Committee and other Commuittees of the Board are regularly
placed betore the Board.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Dunng the year, 5 (Five) Board Meetings and one Independent Directors’ meeting was held,
The maximum interval between any two meetings was within the maximum allowed gap
pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations read with the Circulars
issued by MCA and SEBI with respect to increase in the gap and extension for holding meetings
pursuant to COVID-19 pandemic. The dates on which the Board Meetings were held are as
follows:

30.06.2020, 19.08.2020, 10.11.2020, 12.02.2021 and 31.03.2021 respectively.
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The attendance of each Director along with meeting dates are as follows;

Board Sheela Rishi Raj | Kishorelal Jignesh Sourav
meeting Patodia Patodia Chhabria Lakhamshi Bhattacharjee
dates Shah

30.06.2020 | ATTENDED | ATTENDED | ATTENDED | ATTENDED | ATTENDED
19.08.2020 | ATTENDED | ATTENDED | ATTENDED | ATTENDED | ATTENDED

10.11.2020 | ATTENDED | ATTENDED | ATTENDED | ATTENDED | ATTENDED
12.02.2021 | ATTENDED | ATTENDED | ATTENDED | ATTENDED | ATTENDED

31.03.2021 | ATTENDED | ATTENDED | ATTENDED |NOTAPPLICABLE ATTENDED

DIRECTORS:

As per provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Company’s Articles of
Association Smt. Sheela Patodia, (DIN No. (00276269) Director of the Company retires by
rotation and being eligible offers herself’ for re-appointment. A resolution seeking shareholders
approval for her re-appointment forms part of this Notice.

Mr Jignesh Lakhamshi Shah (DIN: (0152673) resigned as Independent and Non-Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 01.03.2021 due to other commitments and there is
no other reason for his resignation The Board noted its appreciation for the services rendered by
Mr Jignesh Lakhamshi Shah during his tenure as Independent and Non-Executive Director of
the Company.

Ms. Neha Amin Merchant (DIN: 07454674) was appointed as Additional Woman Director —
MNon-excecutive & Independent by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 1% April, 2021
for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee subject to approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting
of the company. She holds office upto the ensuing AGM . The Company has received a notice
from a member proposing the candidature of her for directorship of the Company. A resolution
seeking shareholders approval for her re-appointment forms part of this Notice.

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 307 June, 2020 had re-designated Mrs Sheela
Patodia (Din: 00276269) as Non-Executive Director of the Company. She will continue to be
the Chairperson of the Company.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
The Company has the following KMP(s)
1. SriRishiraj Patodia is the Managing Director.
2. SriBikash Chatterji is the Company Secretary and
3. SriBhagirath Biswas is the Chiet Financial Officer of the company.
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 1* April, 2021 reappointed Mr Rishiraj Patodia
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(DIN: 00259104) as Managing Director for another term of 3 {Three) vears liable to retire by
rotation on recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee & subject to
approval of shareholders in general meeting, . A resolution recommending re-appointment of
Mr Rishiraj Patodia for approval of shareholders is annexed to this Notice.

The Company has received declaration from all the Independent Directors of the Company
confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 (b) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The
Independent Directors have complied with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed in
Schedule IV to the Act and also Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management
Personnel. There has been no change in the cicumstances affecting their status as
Independent Director of the Company.

With regard to integrity, expertise and experience (including the proficiency) of the
Independent Director appointed/re-appointed ,the Board of Directors are of the opinion that
all the Independent Directors are persons of integrity and possess relevant expertise and
experience and their continued association as Directors will be of immense benefit and in the
best interest of the Company. With regard to proficiency of the Independent Directors
.ascertained from the online proficiency self assessment test conducted by the Institute, as
notified under Section 50 of the Act, the Board of Directors have taken on record that they are
exempt from appearing in the test or that they will comply with the applicable law before the
prescribed time,

The meeting of the Independent Directors during 2020-2021 was in accordance with the
requirements of Section 149 and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of
the Listing Regulation. All the Independent Directors attended the meeting. The Independent
Directors met separately on 12" February, 2021, and inter-alia discussed the following;

* Evaluation of performance of Non- Independent Directors and the Board of Directors
asawhole.

+ LEvaluation of performance of the Executive Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company, taking into account the views of Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

= Evaluation of the guality, contents and timelines of flow of information between the
management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably
perform its duties.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

AUDIT COMMITTEE-

The Audit Committee comprises of 3 Non-Executive Independent Directors, and one
Executive Director. The composition, quorum, powers, role and scope are in accordance with
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions of Regulation 18 of the Listing
Regulation. All the members of the committee are well versed with finance & accounts, legal
matters, company law, corporate affairs and general business practices.
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The composition of the Committee is as follows:

Name of the Director Position Category

Kishorelal Chhabria Chairperson Independent, Non-Executive
Jignesh L Shah upto Member Independent, Non-Executive
01.03.2021

Saurav Bhattarcharjee Member Independent, Non-Executive
MNeha Amin Merchant Member Independent, Non-Executive
(w.e.f. 30" June, 2021)

Rishiraj Patodia Member Promoter, Executive

The Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the Committee,
The Chairperson of the Audit Committee is an Independent Director.
The Committee is empowered, pursuant to its terms of reference, inter-alia to:

« Investigate any activity withinits terms of reference or referred to 1t by the Board
» seekinformation from any employes

» obtain outside legal or other professional advice

= secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary
» have full access to information contained in the records of the Company

The Minutes of the Audit Committee Meetings are noted by the Board of Directors at the
subsequent Board Meetings.

BROAD TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Audit Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities regarding compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the gquality and integrity of the accounting, auditing,
reporting practices & financial disclosures of the company and broadly performs the following
functions:
a)  Owersight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of 1ts financial
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.
b} Recommending to the Board the appointment, remuneration, and terms of appointment
of auditors of the company.
¢)  Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors.

d) Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditors' report
thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:
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- Matters required to be included in the Directors' Responsibility Statement to be
included in the Board's report in terms of clause ( ¢ ) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

- Changes if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

- Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgement by
management.

- Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.
- Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.
—  Disclosure of any related party transactions.

- Qualifications in the draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the guarterly financial statements before submission to
the Board for approval.

Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds
utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/ prospectus/notice and
the report submitted by the monitoring agency, monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a
public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up
steps in this matter;

Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of
audit process;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related
parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;
Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management svstems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors,
adegquacy of the internal control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

Discussion with statutory auditors Lefoie the audit commences, about the nature and
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scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern:

Tolook into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

To review the function of the Whistle Blower mechanism:

Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the Wholetime Finance Director or any other
person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the
qualifications, experience & background, etc. of the candidate:

To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or
enforced by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable,

The Audit Committee also reviews the following —

Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and result of operations:

Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee),
submitted by management;

Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory
Auditors;

Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses: and

The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Internal Auditor shall be
subject to review by the Audit Committee.

Statement of deviations, if any

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, four Audit Committee Meetings were held 30"
June 2020, 19" August 2020, 10" November 2020 and 12” February 2021. The Audit Committee
also met prior to the finalization of accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2021. The maximum
interval between any two meetings was within the maximum allowed gap pursuant to the Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations read with the Circulars issued by MCA and SEBI with respect to
increase in the pap and extension for holding meetings pursuant to COVID-19 pandemic.

The attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings during the financial yearended 317 March, 2021
on date of this report is as follows

Name of the Direcror No. of meetings attended
Jignesh Shah (upto 01.03.2021)

4
Kishorelal Chhabria (Chairman ) 4
Sourav Bhattacharjee 4
Rishiraj Patodia 4
Neha Amin Merchant {w.e.f 307 June, 2021) N.A
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The Company Secretary was present at all the above meetings.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
COMPOSITION

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprised of three Non-Executive Independent
Directors. The composition of the Committee 15 as on date of this report is as follows

Name of the Director Position Category

Kishorelal Chhabria Chairman Independent, Non-Executive
Jignesh L.Shah (upto Member Independent, Non-Executive
(M.03.2021})

Sourav Bhattacharjee Member Independent, Non-Executive
Meha Amin Merchant Member Independent, Non-Executive
{w.e.f 307 June, 2021 )

The Composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee is pursuant to the provisions of
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of Listing Regulation.

The Company Secretary acts asa Secretary to the Committee.

BROADTERMS OF REFERENCE
The Terms of Reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee inter-alia includes following:

1.

v

vi.

vil.

Reviewing the overall compensation policy, service agreements and other employment
conditions including Annual increments and Commussion of Managing Directors

Approving the minimum remuneration payable to Whole-time Directors & Managing
Directors in accordance with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, in the event of loss
orinadequacy of profits

Formulating the criteria for determining quabifications, positive attributes and
independence of a Director and recommend to the Board their appointment, removal & a
policy, relating to the remuneration of the Dhirectors, Key Managenal personnel and other
employees and evaluating every Director's performance

Formulating the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board

Identifying persons who can be appointed as Directors, Key/Senior Managerial personnel
& recommend to the Board theirappointment & removal

Devising a policy for Board diversity

To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and/or
enforced by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable
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MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

Du.ri.'ng the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, two Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Meetings were heldon 30" June, 2020 and 12" February, 2021.

The attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings during the
financial year ended 31st March, 2021 is as under;

Natwne of the Director No. of meetings attended
Kishorelal Chhabria 2

Jignesh L Shah (uto 01.03.2021) 2

Sourav Bhattacharjee 2

Neha Amin Merchant (w.e.f 30" N.A

June 2021 )

The Company Secretary was present at all the above meetings.
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has formulated a remuneration policy which determines the compensation
structure of the Executive/Non Executive Directors. The Company's remuneration policy is in
consonance with the existing industry practice and aims at attracting and retaining high calibre
talent.

The policy is provided in annexure to the Board's Report and is available on the website of the
Company al hitps:fwww.yarnsyndicate.In/Financials, htmi

Presently, the Company does not have any stock option plan or performance linked incentives for
its Directors,

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee compnses of three Non-Executive Independent
Directors and one Executive Dhirector,

The composition of the Committee as on date of this report is as follows:

Name of the Director Position | Category

Kishorelal Chhabria Chairman | Independent, Non-Executive
Jignesh L Shah (upto 01.03.2021) Member | Independent, Non-Executive
Sourav Bhattacharjee Member | Independent, Non-Executive

Neha Amin Merchant (w.e.f 30® June,2021) | Member | Independent, Non-Executive

Rishiraj Patodia Member | Promoter, Executive
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The Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the Committee.

BROAD TERMS OF REFERENCE

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee inter alia includes following:
i transfer/transmission/ transposition of shares:
ii. consolidation/splitting of folios:
1. 1ssue of share certificates for lost, sub-divided, consolidated, rematerialised, defaced, etc;

. review of shares dematerialised and all other related matters:

v. investors' grievances and redressal mechanism and recommend measures to improve the
level of investor services.

vi. over seeing performance of the Company's Registrars and Share Transfer Agents.

vil, carrying out any other function as is referred by the Board from time to time or enforced by
any statutory notification / amendment or modification as may be applicable.

The Committee has delegated its functions to its Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, M/s. R &
D Infotech Private Limited to redress shareholders grievances and provide a periodical report
to the said committee at every meeting about the grievances received, solved and pending in
addition to their existing functions as follows: -

i. to approve share transfers;

i, toissue duplicate shares against lost or mutilated share certificates;
iii. toissueshares against consolidation and sub-division;

v, tosendasummary of complaints redressed on fortnightly basis;

v. tosend periadical report on transfers & transmission processed, duplicate share certificates
1ssued.

Share transfer formalities are done within the stipulated time period by the Registrars, M/s. R &D
Infotech Pvt. Ltd. The Compliance Officer is authorised to give effect to share transfers as
approved by the Registrars & Share Transfer Agents.

The Share Department of the company and the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, attend to all
grievances of the shareholders and investors received directly or through SEBI including SEBI
Complaints Redress System (SCORES), Stock Exchanges, Department of Company Affairs,
Registrar of Companies etc.

The Minutes of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are noted by the Board of Directors at
the Board Meetings.

Continuous efforts are made to ensure that grievances are more expeditiously redressed to the
complete satisfaction of the investors, Shareholders are requested to furnish their telephone
numbers and e-mail addresses to facilitate prompt action,
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MEETING AND ATTENDANCE

Dunng the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, four Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Meetings were held on Meeting dates: 30.06.2020, 19.08.2020, 10,11.2020 and 12.02.2021

The attendance of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee meetings during the financial vear
ended 31st March, 2021 is as under:

Name of the Director No. of meetings attended
Kishore Chhabria 4
Jignesh L Shah (upto 01.03.2021) 4 -
Sourav Bhattacharjee 4
Rishiraj Patodia 4

| Neha Amin Merchant {w.e.f 30 June 2021 N.A.

DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS' COMPLAINTS RECEIVED, NOT SOLVED AND
PENDING SHARE TRANSFERS

The total number of complaints received during the year ended 315t March, 2021 were NIL . There
were no complaints outstanding as on 31st March, 2021.

The number of share transfers and requests for dematerialization pending as on 31st March,
2021 were Nil.

Name, Designation & Address of the Compliance Officer:;
Mr. Bikash Chatterjee isthe Company Secretary

Shareholders'/ Investors' complaints and other correspondence are attended to within the
stipulated time period except where constrained by disputes or legal impediments.

Remuneration Policy

The Board has on recommendation of the Nomination and Bemuneration Committee framed a
policy for selection and appointment of Directors and their remuneration. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee identifies and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise, skills and
knowledge and experience of the person for appointment as Director and Key Managerial
Personnel. The appointment of Director as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee requires approval by the Board.

The policy relating to Nomination and Remuneration Policy duly approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company has been placed on the Company website and the weblink is
https:/ /www varnsyndicate.in/Investor-Relations html

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: A
Familiarization programme about roles, rights and responsibilities of Independent Directors in the
Company, nature of industry in which the company operates, business model of the company etc.
15 in existence in the company.

BOARD EVALUATION Fursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board has
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carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as
well as the evaluation of the working of the committees of the Board. The Directors expressed therr
satisfaction with the evaluation process,

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations of
the Board, in consultation with its Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has formulated a
framework containing, interalia the criteria for performance evaluation of the entire Board of the
company, its committees and individual Directors, including mdependent Directors. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee has also carried out evaluation of every Directors'
performance,

The performance evaluation of all the Independent Directors have been done by the entire Board,
excluding the Director being evaluated. On basis of performance evaluation done by the Board it is
been determined whether to extend or continue their term of appointment whenever the respective
term expires. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process,

FINANCE:

Cash and cash equivalent as at 31" March 2021 was Rs. 5.19 Lakhs (previous vear: Rs, 5.23 Lakhs),
The company continues to focus on judicious management of its working capital, Receivables,
mventories and other working capital parameters were kept under strict check through continuous
MONItoTng.

The Company has appointed Internal Auditors, Mr Pawan Kumar Sarda, Chartered Accountant
of M/s G F Jaju & Co. pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013,

PERFORMANCE REVIEW:

During the financial year under review, the company's export performance in yarn has not picked
up mainly due to the lack of enquiries from customers. The company did not make any sales in the
domestic and export markets during the year due to extremely difficult market conditions starting
from March, 2020 and continuing for almost the entire financial year of 2020-21 with the COVID-
19 global pandemic. The export market remains highly competitive and margins are thin and not
lucrative at present. For the financial year under review, the company has not traded in any
products cither in domestic and overseas markets. The company has continued to explore newer
markets for yarn and other products both in India and abroad and at the same time maintaining its
excellent business relations with its existing customers in order to get some orders in the domestic
and export business. The revenue from operations was Nil for both current year and previous years.
The company hopes that the overall market conditions will improve once the COVID-19 pandemic
15 0YEr,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESFONSIBILITY:

Since the company does not fall within the purview of provisions as mentioned in Section 135 of
the Companes Act, 2013, so the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the Company.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY:

The company believes in the safe and healthy working conditions and has provided safety
equipments in the offices.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Your Company did not employ any person whose particulars are required to be attached to this
Reportunder Rule 5 of the Companies {(Appointment & Remuneration) Rules, 2014,

Formal annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and
individual directors.
Complied with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013 and the Listing Regulations.

Statement of particulars of employees pursuant to Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the
employees of the Company for the financial year is not applicable as no Directors paid
any amount .

(ii) Ratio of remuneration of Managing Director to the median remuneration of the
employees: N.A

(tii) The percentage increase (decrease) in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial
vear, NLA

(1v) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year:

In view of the Company's performance, no increase in the median remuneration paid to
emplovees.

(v) Thenumber of permanent emplovees on the rolls of Company
3 permanent employees were on the rolls of the Company at the close of the financial
Year.

{v1) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
Managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there
are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: In view of
the Company’s performance, no increases were given to its emplovees,

(vii) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
The Company follows its remuneration policy in fixing the remuneration

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES & INVESTMENTS:

There were no loans, guarantees and investments made under section 186 of the Companies Act
during the year under review.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

The company has not accepted any deposit from the public under Chapter V of the Companies
Act, 2013 or the corresponding provisions of Section 58A of the Compames Act, 1956 and there
15 no amount outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date.

BOARD EVALUATION: Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing
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Ubligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out annual
performance evaluation on its own performance, the directors individually as well the evaluation of
the working of its Audir, Nomination & Remuneration and Stakeholders Relationship Committee,
The evaluation of all the Directors and the Board as a whole was conducted and the Board
approved the evaluation results as collated by the concerned Committee.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY: The Company has a policy for selection
and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. For maintaining the
independence of the Board and separate its functions, the Company's policy is to have an
appropriate combination of Executive and Independent Directors,

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the year under review, all contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the company
during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an
arm's length basis and hence do not fall under the ambit of Section 1588(1) of the Act. There was no
material Related Party Transactions entered into by the company with promoters, directors, KMP
or other designated persons during FY 2020-21. Your Directors draw attention of the members to
Note No, 27 to the Financial Statement which sets out related party disclosures. In view of the
above, the disclosure under the Actin Form AOC-2 is not applicable for FY 2020-21.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the
design or operation were observed.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956 & Section 134
of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby
confirmed:

{1) that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 31" March,
2021, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(i) that the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and
of the profit or loss of the Company for that period;

(iif)  that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

(iv)  that the Directors had prepared the accounts for the financial vear ended 31% March,
2021 on a"going concern’ basis.
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(v) And that we, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company
and that such internal financial controls were adequate and operating effectively.

(vi)  That we had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company is having a paid up equity share capital not exceeding 10 crore and net worth not
exceeding Rs. 25 crore and hence as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 Corporate Governance
Requirements provided under Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to(i) of sub-regulation (2) of
Regulation 46 and Para C,D) and E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations are not applicable to
your Company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis is attached as part of Directors Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORFTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The information required to be given under Rule & (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is

provided below:

{A) Conservation of energy- Your Company constantly and continuously applies all effort for
optimum utilization of the resources.

(I) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy : Power shut down on idle monitors,
shutting off all the hghts when notinuse

(i1} the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy : Nil
(1if) the capital investment on energy conservation equipments; Nil
(B) Technology absorption-
(i} theefforts made towards technology absorption - Latest technology is being used

{(ii} the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or
import substitution — Reduction in specific energy consumption

(iif) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the inancial year)- Nil
(a) thedetails of technology imported;
(b) the yearof import;
(¢} Whether the technology been fully absorbed,

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the
reasons thercoft and

(iv) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development. . Nil
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS ANDOUTGO
There were no foreign exchange earnings or outgo during the year under review,

ANNUALRETURN

A copy of Annual Return is available ar the website of the Company and the web link is
https:/fwwwyarnsyndicate.in/Financials. html

WHISTLE BLOWER/VIGIL MECHANISM: The company has a vigil mechanism named
Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement.

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT: Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Central Government has prescribed maintenance and audit of cost records vide the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 to such class of companies as mentioned in the Table
appended to Rule 3 of the said Rules. These rules are notapplicable to the Company.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT: Secretarial Audit Report dated issued by M/s. Ekta Goswami &
Associates, Practicing Company Secretary is attached as an Annexed to this Report. There are no
observations made by the Secretarial Auditor.

TRANSFER TOINVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:

The Company has no amount lying under unpaid dividend orunpaid interest account or such other
amount as mentioned under Section 125 of the Companies Act 2013 and hence no amount is
required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

DISCLOSURE AS PER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: Your Company has zero tolerance towards
sexual harassment at workplace. It has in place a policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the
rules framed thereunder,

The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the financial year 2020-
21.and there are no complaints pendingason31.3.2021

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has a Risk Management Policy to deal with perceived risks in its business by
identifying and evaluating business risks and opportunities,

GOING CONCERN STATUS

There were no significant or material orders passed by regulators /courts/tribunals impacting or
influencing the Company going concern status and./or its future operations.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has generally complied with requirements of Secretarial Standards -55-1 and §5-
2 1ssued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India during the year.

AUDITORS

Pursuant to the amendment of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 effective from May 7, 2018
the requirement related to ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors by the members of the
Company at every AGM was omitted. In view of the above the shareholders had resolved at the
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72" Annual General Meeting held on 28" September, 2018 to delete the requirement of seeking
ratification of appointment of the M/s § P Sarda & Co., Statutory Auditors at every AGM. The
auditors have not reported any fraud during the year,

AUDITORS' OBSERVATIONS

The observations of the Auditors in their report on Accounts and the Financial Statements, read
with the relevant are self explanatory,

Details of Application made or any proceedings pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code 2016 (IBC) during the year along with the status at the end of the year

The Company has not made or received any application under the IBC during the Financial Year

Details of difference between amount of valuation done at time of one time settlement and
valuation done while taking loan from Banks/F1(s) along with reasons

The Company has not made any one time settlement with the Bank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Board is grateful to Canara Bank for their continued co-operation and timely assistance as and
when required. The Board is grateful to the Reserve Bank of India, State Bank of India, HDFC
Bank, Dr.UN Brahmachar Street Branch, The Cotton Textiles Export Promotion Council, Textile
Commuttee, Export Credit Guarantee Corporation of India Ltd, Collector of Central Excise,
Dhrector General of Foreign Trade, New Dethi, Joint Director General of Foreign Trade, Kolkata,
Registrar of Compames, the Federaton of Indian Export Organizations, The Commercial
Tax Office, Kolkata and other institutions for their kind co-operation in day to day activities of the
Company. Your Directors are thankful to all the executives and staff members of the Company for
their wholehearted co-operation.

Repistered Office : For and on behalf of the Company
86/2/4,5N Banerjee Road
Kolkata-700014
Dated : The 30" day of June 2021.
SHEELA PATODIA
Chairperson

g



YARN SYNDICATE LIMITED - ANNUAL REFORT 2020-21

Annexure- |

SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.202]

{Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the C ompanies (Appoiniment angd
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To

The Members,

Yarn Syndicate Limited

86/2/4, 3.N. Banerjee Road, 1" Floor, Flat No. 2
kolkata—700014

West Bengal

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Yarn Syndicate Limited having its Registered Office at 86/2/4,
5.N. Banerjee Road, 17 Floor, Flat No. 2, Kolkat — 700 014 West Bengal (hereinafter called “the
Company™). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on Our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial vear ended
31.03.2021 has complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Beard-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent. in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hercinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 317 March, 2021 according to the provisions
of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii} The Securities Contracts { Regulation) Act, 1956 "SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

{iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

{v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 ("SEBl Act'):-
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a} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011:

B} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading} Regulations,
2015;

¢} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Tssue of Capital and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 201 5, (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period}

d} The Securitics and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Employee Benefit) Regulations,
2014; (Not applicable to the company during the audit period)

¢} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008, (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

ft The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client:

g} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares} Regulations, 2009:
and (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

hy The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998:
{(MNotapplicable to the Company during the audit period)

(i} The laws specifically applicable to the mdustry to which the Company belongs as identified
by the management anc

I. Textile(Development and Regulation) Order, 200

Wherever required, We have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws,
rules, and regulation and happening of events. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other
applicable laws, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management, Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on tex! laws,

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i.  Secretarial Standards (55-1 and S5-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India and notified by Ministry of Corporate A ffairs.

i, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requircments)
Regulations, 2015;

We further confirm that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct & Indirect Laws by the
Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to review by the Statutory
Auditors and other designated professionals,

During the peried under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above,

We further report that

A. The Beard of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Exceutive Directors and Independent Directors and the changes, in the
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compasition of Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act,

B.  Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
noles on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

C. None of the Directors in any meeting dissented on any resolution and hence there were no
instances of recording any dissenting member's view in the Minutes,

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/actions having a major
bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards, ete. referred to above,

We further repont that during the audit period there were no instances of
* Public/Rights/Preferential Issue of Shares/ Debentures/Sweat Equity, etc.
* Redemption/ Buy Back of Securities

* Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance of section 180 of the Companies Act,
2013

*  Merger/ Amalgamation/ reconstruction, ete.

Date: 30/06/2021
Place: Kolkata

For EKTAGOSWAMI & ASSOCIATES

EKTA GOSWAMI

Practising Company Secretary
ACS: 40657, COP: 16778
UDIN: AD40657CO00547086

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms
anintegral part of this report,
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The Members,

Yarn Svndicate Limited

86/2/4, 5. N. Banerjee Road, 1° Floor, Flat No. 2
Kolkata— 700014

West Bengal

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

3.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company, Our
responsibility 15 to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on the random test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records, We
believe that the processes and practices, We followed provide a reasonable basis for Our
opinion,

We have not verified the correciness and appropriatencss of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, We have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events efc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management, Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on random test basis.

A Substantial portion of the audit programme was completed prior to the outbreak of the
pandemic COVID-19, However, owning to the lockdown measure imposed in the country and
the cascading impact thereof, for certain verifications and cross checks, we have relied on
management representations and assurances, wherever required, for forming our opinion and

eventual reporting.

The Secretarial Audit report 15 neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

Drate: 300672021
Place: Kolkata

For EKTA GOSWAMI & ASSOCIATES

EKTAGOSWANMI
Practising Company Secretary
ACS: 40657, COP: 16778
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AR

I MI

Regd, Office: 86/2/4, S N Banerjee Road, 1" Floor, Flat No.2, Kolkata-T00014.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A)

B)

<)

D)

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

During the last few years, the Company had diversified its business portfolio from export of
yarn to trading in the domestic market in various kinds of fabrics which has been its
business in the last few years. The export of varn continues to be the company's principal
focus of business but due to very competitive export market conditions, the company has
not done any export business for several years but is always on the look-out for lucrative
export deals. During the year under review the Company has not made any sales in the
domestic and foreign markets. The fourth quarter of the year saw the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic which adversely affected the global economy and greatly affected the
company's financial performance.

Even though the company has not ventured into the export market, we are constantly
searching for customers in lucrative export markets for yarn and at the same time on the
lookout for the export of other products whose exports will benefit us in the long run and
also doing business in the domestic market,

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

With India having a strong varn and textile industry, the global varn market will always
continue to be an opportunity for Indian exporters like your company with decades of
experience in the yarn export business. Similasly the domestic market in various kinds of
fabrics and non-wovens is an opportunity as the market is a stable and Erowing one.

The biggest threat is the COVID-19 pandemic. The world is challenging Covid-19
Pandemic, which has notleft any part of the world to face it. One side lives are beinglostasa
result of Fandemic, the other largest consequence is that the world is facing big downfall in
the economy too.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company operates only in one business segment viz. exporting yarn and fabric and
other activities are incidental thereto. The geographical segments of the company mainly
comprises of the exports to various countries,

RISKS AND CONCERNS

The biggest risk and concern for the Indian yarn exporters and merchant traders is the fall in
the global economy due to the current pandemic. The advent of COVID-19 causeda
disruption to the Company plan for the year . The Company had to quickly repriortize its
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E)

F)

G)

H)

efforts to ensure that the safety and well being of its employees were maintained during
periods of the extended lockdowns.

This economic crisis has attacked various businesses in and around the world. All sort of
Travel, Hospitality, Hotels, Restaurants, Bar, Package food, retail, e-commerce,
automobile etc. have suffered financially due to the crisis brought on by the pandemic. One
of the severely affected industry is Textile Manufacturing which is the second largest
employment creating industry after agriculture.

OUTLOOK

The financial year 2020-2021 was the most challenging time for almost every industry,
As the world enters the second year in its fight withCOVID-19 ,Government is trying to
maintain a delicate equilibrium between protecting their citizens fromCOVID and not
having adverse impact on economic growth.

The textiles industry in India was estimated at more than US$ 100 billion in January 2020.
It is the second-largest employer after agriculture, providing employment to over 45
million people directly and 60 million people indirectly,

The outlook for the yarn market is not good at present due to the COVID pandemic.
However the textile industry in India is resilient and will be back on its feet once the
pandemic ends.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has a proper internal control system, which provides adequate safeguards
and effective monitoring of the transactions and ensures that all assets are safeguarded and
protected against 1oss from unauthorized use or disposition.

Moreover, an audit committee of the Board of Directors regularly review the audit plans,
adequacy of internal control as well as compliance of accounting standards. The
company has also appointed an Internal Auditor and Chief Financial Officer to report an
and oversee the Internal Control Systems.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
Please refer to 'Performance Review' in the Board of Directors’ Report.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES/ INDUSTRIAL
RELATIONS

We firmly believe that safe and healthy working conditions in the offices are as necessary
and important as production, productivity and quality. Our policy requires conduct of
activities in such a way as to take foremost account of health and safety of all concerned,
besides conservation of natural resources and protection of the environment.

Your organization appreciates the constructive support of Banks, Institutions, Suppliers,
Export Promotion Organisations, executives, employees, creditors, service providers and
the confidence shown by them in the company, Emplover-Employee relations in all the
offices of the company were cordial throughout the vear under review.
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The total numbers of peaple employed by the Company are 6 (Six).

I) CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's
objectives, projections, estimates and expectations are “Forward looking statements”.
Actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that
could make a difference to the company's operations include, among others, economic
conditions affecting demand/supply, the exchange rate of the Rupee vis-i-vis the U S,
Dollar and price conditions in the domestic and overseas markets, also effect of political
situations, change in the Government regulations on Export, tax laws and other statutes
and incidental factors over which the company does not have any control.

For and on behalf of the Board
Registered Office:
86/2/4, 5 N Banerjee Road,
Kolkata - 700014
Dated: The 30" day of June, 2021 SHEELA PATODIA
Chairperson
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hief Executive Officer (CEQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Certification

We, Rishiraj Patodia, Managing Director and Bhagirath Biswas, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

d.

We have reviewed the financial statements including cash flow statement for the financial year
ended 31" March, 2021 and to the best of our knowledge and belief :

I These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
ar contain staternents that might be misleading:

[I. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit
Commuittee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we
are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to address these deficiencies.

We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee:
L. significant changes in the internal control over financial reporting during the vear:

Il. significant changes in the accounting policies during the year and that the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements: and

III. that there are no instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware of and
involvernent therein of the management or an employee having a significant role in the
Company's internal control system over financial reporting.

Date: 30/06/2021 Rishiraj Patodia Bhagirath Biswas
Place: Kolkata Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 00259104
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AUDITOR'S REPORT
TOTHEMEMBERS OF YARN SYNDICATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statemenis
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial staternents of Yarn Syndicate Limited{"the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Chan ges in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act”)in the mannerso required and give a true and fair view in con formity with the Indian
Accounting  Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind A57) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the loss and total
comprehensive income, changes inequity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (5As). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Stalements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

Management believes that it has taken into account all the factors that can have any possible impact
arising from COVID 19 pandemic on the preparation of the financial statements and results including
the ability of the Company to continuc as going concern. However, it is not possible to reliably estimate
the future financial implications arising from the pandemic situation on the Company's operations as
normalcy is yet to return 1o business operations. Further, the impact assessment is a continuing process
and evolving, given the uncertainties associated with nature and duration of the current situation, The
Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes in macro-economic conditions and take
appropriate measures as may be required.

Quropinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters are addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report,
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Sn Key Audit Matters Auditer's Response

I Going Concern assumplion Ag per our observation of the Financial Statements of the
Company it is seen that the Company has aceumulated
losses and its net worth has become negative as on the
Balance Sheet date. These conditions, along with other
matiers, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
that may cast significant doubt about the Company's
ability to continue as a poing concern. However, the
financial statcments of the Company have been prepared
on & going concemn basis as the management is exploring
new business opportunities to sustain the Company and is
of the view that the promoters have agreed to infuse funds
a5 and when required in the foreseeable future.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's
Report including Annexure to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance
and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does nat cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Actwith respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance. total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows ofthe Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
cffectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
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hiquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor's report
that includes our opinien. Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance, bul 1s not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
agaregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtam audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is hi gher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission ns, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143( 3)1) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriztencss of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists refated to
cvents or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a goin g concern.

* Evaluate the overail presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
ncluding the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events ina manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individuall yor
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financisl statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative faclors in
(i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the
effect ofany identified misstatements in the financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we defermine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that;

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as itappears from our examination of those hooks.

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opmnion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014,

¢} On the basis of the written representations received from the dircctors as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 1s disqualified as on March 31,
2021 frombeing appointed as adirector interms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

f)  With respectto the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A" Our report expresses an unmaodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197( 16} of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act,

h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
bestof our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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i The Company has no pending litigations as on the Balance Sheet date.

. The Company has no material foreseeable losses on any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts,

. Ne amount was required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

2. As required by the Compenies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

For SPSarda & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration No, 323054E

Ankit Agarwal

Partner

Membership No, 305132

UDIN : 21305132AAAACN3122
Date : 30" day of June, 2021
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
reportto the Members of Yamn Syndicate Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) Of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of YARN SYNDICATE
LIMITED (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operaling effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to respective company's policies, the sa feguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Onr responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Ac t, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethic al requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Cur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Cur audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal conirol based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over finaneial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that recei pts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, ordisposition ofthe company'sassets that could have a material effect on the financial stalements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given tous, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls ever financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForS PSarda & Co,
Chariered Accowntants
Firm's registration No. 323054E

Ankit Agarwal

Partner

Membership No. 305132

UDIN :21305132AAAACNII22
Date : 30" day of June, 2021
Place : Kolkata
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ANNEXURE'B'TOTHE INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section
of vur report to the Members of Yarn Syndicate Limited of even date)

I

ii}

i)

v}

¥}

Vi)

(2} The Company is maintaining proper records of fixed assets showing full particulars including
guantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

{b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the vear but there is
a regular programme of verification, which, in our opinion, 18 reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification during the year by the
management.

{c} According to the information and explanations given to us and the verifications made by us, the
title deeds for all immovable property are held in the name of the company

The Company does not hold any inventory, Accordingly, the matters specified in terms of clause 3
(i1} of the Order is not applicable to the company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, from companies, firms, and limited
liability partnerships or other parties listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act 2013, Accordingly, clause (iii) is not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by us, the company
has not given loan, Investment or guarantee under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013
during the year. Accordingly, clause 3 {iv) ofthe Order is not applicable o the company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year from the public within the meaning of
the provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under. Hence, the
clause (v} ofthe order is not applicable.

The clause relating to the maintenance of cost records L/s 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as
such, para 3(vi}of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

vii) @) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the company

examined by us, in our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing with
appropriate authonties undisputed statutory dues meluding, Provident Fund, Employees' State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax,
Goods & Services Tax, Cess and other material statutory Dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authoritics. However, according to the information and explanations given to us,
there is no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these which were in arrears as on
31.03.2021 for the period of more than 6 months from the date they become payable.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, in our opinion, there were no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax, Sales Tax,
Service tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and Value Added Tax.

viii) The Company does not have any borrowing from any financial instititions or bank nor have they

issued any debentures as at the Balance Sheet date. Accordingly the provision of Clause 3 (viii) of
the Order is not applicable.
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ix} The Company have not raised money by way of IPO/Further public offer/Debt Instruments. As per
the information the Company has not availed any fresh term loan during the vear. Accordingly, the
provision of Clause 3 {ix) of the Order is not applicable.

%) On the basis of our examination and according to information and explanation given to us, no
material fraud by company or any fraud on the company by its officer’'employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

xi} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us managerial
remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions ofthe Sec 197 read to the Schedule Vo the Act.

xii} According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the company examined
by us, the company is not Nidhi Com pany. Accordingly, the provision of Clause 3 (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

wiifpAccording to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the company examined
by us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with the Section 188 and 177 of the
Companies Aet, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by applicable accounting standard,

xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment / private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debenture during the year under review, Hence the clause the provision of Clause 3 (xiv)
of the Order 18 not applicable.

w} According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the company examined
by us, the company has not entered into any non cash transactions with directors or Persons
connected with um. Hence the clause the provision of Clause 3 (xv) of the Orderis not applicable.

xvipAccording to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the company examined
by us, the company is not required to register under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934,

Fors PSarda & Co,
Chartered Accounianis
Firm's registration No, 323054E

Ankit Agarwal

Partner

Membership No. 305132

UDIN ;21305132AAAACN3122
Date : 30" day of June, 2021
Place : Kolkata
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Yarn Syndicate Limited
Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2021
All srmounts ane bn As.
Notas As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
i Property plant and agquiprment 3 Y7140 T340
b) Deferred tax assets (net) 4 - 1,575,508
Total non-current assats 727,140 2,302,648
Current assets
a) Finangial assets
i] Trade receivables 5 - =
Ii} Cash and cash eguivalants 6 518,800 523,565
iid) Othaer financial assets F) 120,000 130,000
d) Orther cufrent ascets ] 2,212,344 3012679
Total current assets 2,551,153 3,655,244
Total assets 3.578,493 _E,ﬂj?;ﬂl'
EQILITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity share capital 9 37,500,000 37,500,000
b} Other equity 144,135,294) (40,675,526)
Total equity (6,639,294) {3,175,526)
Liakilities
Mon-current liabilities
a} Provisions 10 B73.348 771,335
Total non-current liabilities 873,348 112,335
|Current liabilities
a] Financial Nabilities
11 Short term borrowings 11 8,636,486 7, TER 486
il] Trade payables 12 245,394 284,547
b Provisions 13 - -
¢} Other current labllities 14 462 358 287,948
Total current liabilitias 0,344,239 8,361,083
Total liabilities 10,217,587 5,133,418
Total equity and labilitios §57,E92
1] 0

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financlal statements,

A per our report of even date attached.

for 5 P Sardo & Co,
Chorterad Accaurbonls

ICAI Firm's Registration Mo, ; 323054E

Ankit Agarwal
{Partner}
hembership No : 305132

Place : Kolkata
Date : 30.06. 2021
LIDIN: 2130513288880 3 132

for and on Beholf of the Board of Divectors

Rishiraj Patodia
(Managing Directos)
DIN:00259104

Sheela Patodia
{Director)

MMN-DDITEIES

B. C. Chatterji
(Campany Secretary)
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[CHirector)

DIM:00206065

B Biswas
{Chief Fenancial Officer]
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Yarn Syndicate Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 315t March 2021

All amounts are in Rs,

Year Ended Year Endad
Motas Az at __A.sat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
I | Revenue from operations 15 . -
N | Other income 16 25,000 9365
1 |Total Income {H) 25,000 9365
IV |Expanses
Purchases of Stodk-in-Trade 17 . -
Emgloyee benefits experse 18 677 e 695,778
Finarce costs 19 414 2,057
Depreciation expense 20 £ 165,590
Drher expensas 21 1235400 13,750,007
Tistal expensas [IV] 1,513,261 14,617,837
W |Profit bafore tax {1l -1V} lusun:l {14,608, 467)
Vi [Tax expense
Excess Income tax earber vear S | 141103
Deferred ta 4 1,575,508 252,063
Todal kax expensa (V1) L!-‘-Fif!oﬂ - 1,158,551 |
VIl |Profit for the period [V-¥I) (3,953, 769) {13,445 518)
Vill {Other comprehenslve incame
A Tterng thot will mod be reclossified to profit or doss
- Remeasurement of the employes defined banefit
plans {nat of @x) -
- Equity instrurments through other comprehensme -
incame {net of tax)
Oy Ity thet may be reciassifiag to profit or lass
- Effiective portion of gains/{loss) on cash flow hadges
Tetal other comprohensive income (net of taxes) = =
i [Total comprebansive income far the year (VI (3,063, 764) {13,445 515}
Esrnings per equity share of [ 10 each)
hf;? Basic (in Ry] i3 (092 {3.55)
) Dibined In Rs) 23 [0.92) [3.59]]

The apcampanping Aotes form on imtegre port of te Fooncis stotenments,

Ad per owe report of even dote abtoched.

for 5 P Sarda & Co.
Chorterad Accowntants
ICAl Firm's Reglstrathon Mo, : 323054

Ankit Agarwal
[Partner)
Membership Mo : 305132

Flace : Kolkata
[rate : 30.06. 3071
LIGIN: 21305132008 8CHA122
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for ond on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Rishira| Patodia
{Managing Directar)

CHN-D0255704

Sheela Patadia

(Direszor)
DiNAO02TE 265

B, €, Chatterf

[Campary Socretary}

K.Chhakria
[Directar)
DiN00306065

B Biswas
|Chief Fimanciad Officar)
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Yarn Syndicate Limited

statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 315t March 2021

All arnounts are in B

Az on Year ended As an Year ended
Particubars 31,03.2021 31032020
A W F TirnG ES:
Profit far the year (1 BEE 361) (14,508, 457]
Adjustment to reconcile net profit to net cash provided by Oparaticnal Acthvities
Oapreciation . 165,950
nteresit pupanse 415 2057
Interest income . {4,365]
Gain on Mutusd Fupd
Pravision [/ Bad Debts) Sundry Bal. W/ back 4,933,025
Bad Debis W/off 1,330,139
(1887 845} 12.186,621)
Changes in Assots & Liabilities:
Trade Raceivables: " 2
Other Current Assats: E00,335 205,397
Trade payablas- [39.253) 113,517
Loag Term Provisions 101,012 B1,717
Cither Cusrent Liabifitias 174,309 &9,11E
CASH GENERATED FROM OFERATIONS {B51,341) mumh
Diract Tanes Paid: - 1554 515}
HET CASH GENERATED BY DPERATIONS |A} (851,341} {342 359}
B CASH INWE INITIES:
Inwestments
Gain on Mutual Fund e
Interest incoms = 5365
NET CASH GENERATED / (USED) BN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 8) 9,365 |
€ CASH Fl ITIES:
Lomg Term Barrewings repaid - -
short Term Barrowings: B4E 000 145 870
Interest sxpgnse [415} {2,057
NET CASH GENERATED / (USED) IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES €] B47,584 243,813
MET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT [A+B+C) {3,757) [msuaiﬂ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINMIMG OF THE YEAR 522,565 711,747
LCASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AS PER MOTE 12,1 518809 522 566

Note: The above cash flow statement has been prepared fa uader the indirect methad a5 528 0ul i the Indion Accownting Sandard-7 an Cash

How Statements preseribed wnger Cos, Act 2012
Tiv's is bhe Cosh Sow staterent referred o iy our réport of even dole attoched.
for 5. P Sorda & Co.

Chartered Accowntants
ICAI Finm's Registration No, < 323054

Rizhirsj Patodla
|daraggivg Direcior)
Ankit Agarwal DIN:O0ESS 104
[Pariner)
Membership Mo - 305132
UDIN: 21305138 ARACNIADE
Sheela Patodia
(Director)
Place ; Kolkata M 000 TE2ED
Date ; 30,06, 2021
B. C. Chattesp
|Eompany Sacretary)

ag

for and on Behoif of the Board of Directors

E.Chiiabria
(Directory
D003 0enes

B Biswis
[Chiaf Finarcial Sfficar)
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Notes to Financial statements
1. Company overview

Yarn Syndicate Limited (the 'Company’) is a public limited company domiciled in India and has its
registered office at 86/2/4 S. N Banerjee Road, 15t Floor, Flat No. 2, Kolkata 700014, Iis equity shares
are listed on BSE stock exchange in India. The Company is engaged in trading and export of yarn.

2A. Basis of preparation of financial statements
Basis of preparation and Compliance with Ind AS

For all periods upto and including the year ended 31st March, 2017, the Company had prepared its
financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles {GAAP) in India
and complied with the accounting standards (Previous GAAP) as notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended,
to the extent applicable, and the presentation requirements of the Companies Act, 2013,

In accordance with the notification dated February 16, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133
read with Rule 4A of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (collectively, “Ind AS™) with cffect from April 1,2017
and the Company is required to prepare its financial statements in accordance with Ind AS for the year
ended 31st March, 2021.

Basis of measurement

The Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost
convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and liahilitics,
including defined benefit plans which have been measured at actuarial valuation as required by relevant
Ind AS.

Fair value measurement

A number of company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for
both financial and non financial assets and liabilitics.

The company has established policies and procedures with respect to the measurement of fair values,
The chief financial officer and the persons entrusted have overall responsibility for overseeing all
significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values and assessments that these valuations
meet the requirements of IND AS.

1B. Significant accounting policies

The Company has applied the following accounting policies o all periods presented in the Ind AS
financial statements.

a. Current versus non-current classification:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification. An asset s treated as current when it is:

* Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
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*  Held primarily for the purpose of trading
* Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

*  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period,

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
* Itisexpected tobe settled in normal operating cycle
*  ltisheld primarily for the purpose of trading
*  Itisdueto be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period,

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current only,

The operating eycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents.

b. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized 10 the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
discounts, volume rebates, oulgoing sales taxes and other indirect taxes excludi ng excise duty.
Excise duty is a liability of the manufacturer which forms part of the cost of production,
irrespective of whether the goods are sold or not. Since the recovery of excise duty flows to
Company on its own account, revenue includes excise duty. Ind As 115,"Revenue from
Contracts with customers” has been considered wherever applicable.

The specific recognition criteria deseribed below must also be met before revenue is
recognized:

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, which generally coincides with delivery,
Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair valye of the consideration received or
recervable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Export benefits
are accounted on recognition of export sales,

Interest income

Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. Interest income is
recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the afmount outstanding and the
applicable interest rate when there is a reasonable certa ity as to realization,



il.
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Property, plant and equipment

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises ils purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, attributable borrowing cost and any other directly
attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its intended use. Tt
also includes the present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning and removing of an
asseland restoring the site after its use, if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to the statements of profit and loss in the
period in which the costs are incurred. Major inspection and overhaul expenditure is capitalized
ifthe recognition criteria are met.

Depreciation:

Depreciation is provided on WDV basis for property, plant and equipment s0 as to expense the
depreciable amount as per schedule I of the companies act 201 3,

Depreciation on additions to assets during the year valuing upto Rs. 5,000/ are fully depreciated
in the year of acquisition,

When an asset is scraped or otherwise disposed off, the cost and related depreciation are
removed from the books of accounts and resultant profit or loss, if any, is reflected in the
statement of Profit & Loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost,
Foreign currencies

In the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency are iranslated into the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in other currencies are translated into
the functional currency at exchange rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in other currencies and measured at historical cost or fair value are
translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates on which such values were determined.
All exchange differences are included in the statement of profit and loss except any exchan ge
differences on monetary items designated as an effective hedging instrument of the currency
risk of designated forecasted sales or purchases, which are recognized in other comprehensive
INgome.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with, When the grant relates to an expense
tem, it is recognized as income on a systemalic basis over the perinds that the related costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is
recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related.
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h.

Taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected o be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authoriies, The tax rates and tax laws used to compule the amount
are those that are enacted or substanti vely enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on lemporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences,
except when it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foresecable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deduct; ble temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tix assets are recognized to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset 1o be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at
each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that furure
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets as on the last date of preceding financial year have
been written off in current financial vear due 1o uncertainty of its utilization because of current
underlying business circumstances.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized
either in other comprehensive income or in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax ligbilities arc offset ifa legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assels against current tax liabilities and the deferred faxes relale to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of the asset, All ather borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds, Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to
the extent regarded as an adjustment to the bormowing costs.

I. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement at the inception of the lease, The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specilic assel or assets and the
drrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even ithat right is not explicitly specified
Inanarrangement,

For arangements entered into prior o | April 2016, the Company has determined whether the
arrangement contains lease on the basis of facts and circumnstances existing on the date of

transition.

G2



YARN SYNDICATE LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

j-

K.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs incurred in bringing
each product to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

> Stock-in-trade: These are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost includes cost of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Ubsolete inventories are identified and written down 1o net realizable value. Slow moving and
defective inventories are identified and provided to net realizable value,

Impairment

Fixed assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment. In case events and
circumstances indicate any impairment, recoverable amount of fixed assets is determined. An
impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of the asset either belonging o
Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or otherwise exceeds recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of assets net selling price or its value in use. In assessing the value in use,
the estimated future cash flow from the use of assets is discounted to their present value at
appropriate rate. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been change in the recoverable
amount and the loss no longer exists or has decreased. Impairment loss / reversal thereof is
adjusted to the carrying value of the respective asset, which in case of CGU are allocated 1o
assets on a prorated basis.

Investments

Long term investments are stated at cost less provision for diminution in value other than
temporary, If any, Current investments are valued at lawer of cost and fair value determined on
anindividual investment basis.

Employee Benefits:

Defined benefit plan: The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five
vears of service with the Company at the time of resignation/superannuation.

The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the
Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to
bederived from employees' services.

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to the
Other Comprehensive Income. Re-measurement recognized in OCI is reflected immediately in
retained carnings and will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is caleulated using a discount rate which is
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds.

The defined benefit obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or
surplus in the Company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is
limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plans or reductions in future centributions to the plans.
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p.

Defined contribution plan: Payments to defined contribution plans are recognized as an exponse
when employees have rendered service entitling themto the contributions.

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident
fund, for which both the employees and the Company make month] ¥ contributions at a specified
percentage of the covered employees' salary. The contributions as specified under the law are
made to the Government Provident Fund monthly.

Short-term employee benefits: A liability is recognized for benefits gccruing to emplovees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave in the period the related service is rendered,
Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the un
discounted amount of the benefits ex pectedto be paid in exchange for the related service.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized when the Campany has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
aresult of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliahble estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Ifthe effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a curreént pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessment of time value of money and, where appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss as 4 finance cost. Provisions are reviewed ateach reporting date and are adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate,

Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is
remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent asscts are not recognized in financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realized. However, when the realization of income s
virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized.

Cash and cash equivalent:

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand that are
readily convertible into cash which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and are
held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments,

Earnings per Share:

The basic Eamings per Share (“"EPS™) are computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax
for the year attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, net
profit’{loss) after tax for the yvear attributable to the equity shareholders and the weirghted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear are adjusted for the effects of al|
dilutive potential equity shares,
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3: Property plant and equipment

farn Syndicate Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the period onded 31.03.2021

All amounts are in Bs undess otharwise statod

Asat A5 at |
Carrying amounts of: 31st March 315t March
2021 2021 |
Freehold Land 558,302 558 307
Buitding 61,698 61,698
Office Equipments = s
Compater 738 T3E
Furniture & Fittings 3 -
Vehicles 10g,402 106,402
Tatal TIT, 140 7,140
3: Property, Plant and Equipment
Cost Freefold Land|  Bulldings® Computer Vichicles Total
Balance at 1 Aprid 2019 SoE, 303 61,608 4558 079 11,234 ¥31 13,114,210
Additions / Adjustment - - 2 : .
Disposals - - - - -
Balance at 31 March 2020 558,302 61,698 259,979 11,234,231 12,114,210
Additions f Adjustment - - - : :
Disposals - - - -
Balance at 31 March 2021 558,307 61,698 253973 | 11,734,231 12,114 210
Accumulated depreciation and
F
Al raahold Land|  Buildings Caomputer Vehicles Tatal
Iﬂﬂam at 1 Agril 2019 - 259,241 10,961,839 11,221,080
Depreciation expense . 165,550 165,950
Eliminatad on disposal of assets - :
Balance at 31 March 2020 - - 259,241 11,127,829 11,387 070
Depreciation expensa - - - - -
Uthers
Balance at 31 March 2021 - 255,241 | 11,127,829 | 11,387,070
Carrying amount Freehold Land|  Buildings Computer Vehiclas Total
Balance at 1 April 2019 558 302 61,658 733 272,352 B33,130
Additions - - - -
Disposals - : -
Depreciation expense - - : 165,550 165,550
Balance at 31 March 2020 358,302 B1,.G58 e 106,402 127,140
Addithons - ~ -
Disposals = o
Depreciation expense - - . . -
Balance at 31 March 2021 558,302 61,698 738 106,402 717,140
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Yarn Syrsdicate Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

4 Dofarred Tax balances

The following is the analysis of defermed tax assefs presented i the Dalance Sheet-

Belermed tay assels

Defered tas Rabilnies

Talal

Footnones;

M defered fax asset has bees ereated on Provisian for doubigull digbes,

""Iilpmbu?reamﬂﬂddMid'l:l'li1.2'31'9,1hem11nanrﬂ5renup'mnﬂl]eftrmﬂ=5

Feome Fed defermod tan sdsets has been created in current Francal year,

5i Trade recelvabias

Linds caned
Considored pood
Considered Douhtiul
Credit Impained

Less: Doubtfid Receivables
Tatal

Foginoges:
II Mo drece or other receivable zre dus fram direchors o ather afficers af
tracke or aiher receimbles are due fram fipms or

it} The cradit perésd ranggs within 30 das in 80 deys.

6 Cash and cash equivslents

#. Balances with banks in turrent accaunts

b. Cash on hand

Todal cish and cash gguivalents as per Balance Shest

Eank coprcrafts and cash credit Faciiny (secured)

Tatsd cash and cash pquivalents as per Statement of Cash Flows

Mion cash transactions

YARN SYNDICATE LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
_-_______"__.__.__

For the Year ended For the Year ended

315t March 2021 ihtllit_h_m
1,575,508 1,575,508
1,575,504 1,575,508

:nrdmnhinumwrmmma-dunmuinumumm

Far the Year ended Far the Year anded
Xist March 2021 st March 200
14,501,118 14,501,118
14,501,118 14,562,118
14,501 118 14,501,118

trw Compay eithar severally or jolntly with any other persor. Further, no

PrivEE COmpanies respectively in which any directar (5 & partmer, & directar or @ member,

During the currend yaar, the Company bas not entered o any non cash transection.

¥ Other Financlal fzsets

Current
Sepurity Duposits

Total

Far the Year gnded Far the Yekr ended
Jist March 2071 3151 March 2000
136,228 &3.580
R0 L) d439,585
. swaa09 522,565
518,508 522,565
For the Yes ended Fext the Year ended
38 March 2031 3151 March 2020
130,000 130,000
120,000 120,000
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Yarn Syndicate Limibed
Mates to the financial statemants for the vear ended 31 March 2021

B: Onbser Carrant asiels

{Unsgcured Considerad good unless ciherwise stated]
Advanca 1o vendors

Ceher Advances Becoverable

Le=z: Provision for Doubthul Advanges

Taksd

9; Equity Share capizal

Equaty shaee capital

Authgrised share capital
5,000,000 Equity Shares of R5 10y- each with vating rights

Fssued, subsoried snd Fully pald up eguity capital:

lsued shares

3,750,000 [31st March 2021: 3, 750,000; Cst April 2020: 3,750,000 Equity Shares of K 10/ each
with vating rights

Ason 3L03.2001
Lessi Recladdified to financia liabilites (at amartised eost)

Fooinotgs:

3] Reconcilistion of the numbar of shares and amsouwnt autstanding a1 the beginning and a4 the end of the iv i

Equity shares

Balanc=at 1 Aprll 3030
Mavements
Balance o1 31 March 2021

b Detads of shares held by ach shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the Company:
Equity shares

Mirs Sheels Patodia
At 21 31 March 3220
A it 31 March 2021

Wir Rishiraj Patodia
Az at 33 March 2020
Az at 31 March D021

't & Exparts Umited
Az at 51 March 2070
A3 a1 31 March 2021

Far the Year ended For the Yaar ended
H1st March 2021 Fist March 2030
1,212,344 loirem
5,308,757 5,208, TEF
|5, 208,757} 15,204,757
1,212,344 3012579
Far ithe Year ended For the Year ended
3Lst March 2021 35t March 2000
37,500,000 37,500,000
37,500,000 37,500,000
Al 000,000 50,000,000
50,000,000 0,000,000
A7 500,000 37,500,000
37,500,000 37,500,000
37, 500, 00 17 500,000
37,500,000 §7,500,000
Mumber of sharos Nurriber of shares
3,750,000 3,750,000
EN T50,000
Numder al eguty shargs Hl.nﬁber-ufw.ih'ml
1302 802 14037 802
1,302 802 1,302,302
215,500 215,500
Z15,500 215,500
5594 950 994,950
954,950 FRLA50

5.1 A5 per records of the Company as at 31 March 2021 no calls femain unpaid by the directars and officers of the Campany.

5.2 Rghts preference and restrictions attached te the class of shases,
A) Enuity Shares

Each equity sharehalder (s eligible for one vate per share held. The dividend proposed by the Beard of Directors is subject to the
approval of the sharghalders in the ensuing Annual General Megting except i1 cass of interim dividend. in ihe evant of Bquidation
the equity sharehokiers are eligtble 1o receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of &)l proferential amaunts in

i
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Yarn Syndicate Limited
hiotes bo the Fnancial siatemenss for the year ended 38 March Foikd

10; Pronvishcss

Hon Curnge
Employee benefits [See note below)
Gratuity

Totad

11 Short term borrowings

Wnseowned -39 smortised cost
Loans from Relited Partiog
Loans from Body Corporste snd atfers

Total
Fooinetes: The sbove kians see interest frao ke & are repayable on demand,

1% = Trede and other payakies

(0] Teaad putstanding chows of micro enterprises and sl erdorprises

{iif Total putstending duns of creditars other than migr enberprises and small enberprises
Qifeer payables

Tatal

Fostrates:

U] Tre srvarage erecit period on purchases of goods and gervices ane within §0 days. The trae snd cther payabiss are non inforess bearing.

[} There are no micro, small and medium entempises demtified o whim payTrETE I dug

13 Short Term Provissang

Prowisian lor Fdome Tax
Taoial

14z Ggher currest Habilithey

Others
Todal

15: Revense from oparalions

Saks of Trading Goods
Cghes gperating income:
Tutsl

A17: Onher ncoma

a} Interest Incowmne
Intarest Income
lvierest incame gn incame tas refunds

E] Othes non-operabing Income

Gar on Madual Fund

Refund of sakes tax

Misc Racaipts

Py ko mud Leeger required written back
Fezifty Charges

Tukal

Fud the Year ended For the Yesr ended
31t March 201 3151 March 3030
ET3 34z TFLA38
873,398 772,535 |
Far the Year ended For t% Year ended
Szt March 3021 315t March 2020
5,836,514 4,986,914
2,799,572 4,572
S/535 a8 4 T.TE3, 486, 4
For the Year ended For the Vear ended
F1sk March 7071 I1sx Msech 1020
45 3419 184 54734
1a5,394,13 2B4,647.34
For tk= Year ended For the Tear anded
H1st March 2004 3153 March 2020
Far the Year esded For the Year anded
¥zt March 2021 31st March 2053
ﬂﬁEI!EB ZH7 2dg
aL2, 358 TET 549
For the Year ended Far the Year anded
31st March 20X1 215t March 300
Far the Year ended For the Tear ended
315t Barch J0d1 358 March 2020
- B35S
25,000 =
000 3t
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Yarn Syndicate Limited
Hutes to the fimencial statemsents far the yiar ended 31 Mareh 2071

18, Parchase of Siock-in-Trade

Purchass of steck of Trading Gosds

Total

15 Emplayes benefils sapense

Salaries, wapes snd bonus
Contribution to proident and cther funds refer note 25]
Teital

30 FEnEnce costs

Inderest on TS
Cetheran P Tas
Inkerest o T
Inberest on Salas Tak

Tatad

211 Deprociation snd Ammoisation expense

Deprecaton {refar note 3]
Tatal

1 Other expenses

Aales and lases
Elaciricity Crarpes
Rt
Legal and prolessionsl fees
Repairs and malnbenente of athers
Telephone Exp
Charty & Donatssis
Trawsliing and comavance axpienses
Bad delils wretten off
Audit fes

For Statutary &udit

Fer Other Matiers
Frosision far Doubtiul debgs [Mel)
Listing TeesfAnnizal Fees
Printirg & Stationary
Filing Fees
AdvErTisamen]
Crthers
Total

i)

Far the Year ended
L5t March 2022

Fior the Year anded
215t March 2020

For the Year ended ] Far the Year anded

Tt March 2021 3158 March 2020
524,540 257471
154,464 142,305
E77 444 6959, 77E
fFor th Yaar ended For the Year ended
Flst March 2021 318 March 20290
399 2357
ir .
L 2,057
For their Year ended Far the Year ended
X1st March D01 318 March 2000
X 1E5,990
- | 165,590
Far the Year ended For 1he Yese ended
315t March 2021 315t March 2020
0500 7400
E Rl 15,600
ZRE, 000 351 794
373,495 284,545
16,750 B, 350
B, TEE 8,105
- Tllm
25,185 14608
= 1330039
152,750
B0, D0
38,540
- 4,533 075
345,562 354,000
= 23,562
3,000 34,000
35,584 47,505
31,2237 l.ﬂgiﬁ
1,235.401 13,750,007 |
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arn Syndicate Limited
Muodes bo the fimancial statemants for the year gnded 51 March 2021
£3: Earnings per sharg

Particalec For the Yesr ended For the Year anded
Fist March 2021 315t March D020
Basic earmings per share in ') {Hzli [3.58}
iluted earnings por share {in ‘] i0.52) 13:5_1]}
Eask fdiluted earnings per share
The éarnings and weighied average nusnber af equity share used in the calodations of Basic/dilutad garnings per share are a5 folloes:
Barticulars Fer the ¥ear ended Far thee Fear ended
Fst Mgrch 2021 Fist March 2020
Prafit afler tax (3463, 76%) (13,433 515)
Dwvidend indisding dividend d@stribution tas on COP5 . 1
Frcdit far the year used in the caloulation of basic earnings per share [3.463,769) §13,345,515)
Frof for the yoar wsed in the cabculation of duted earings per sharg [2.963,763) (1 459,516)
For the Year énded Far the Year ended
B
Tabein 315t March 2021 st Mareh 2020
Waighted average number of equity shares For basic earnings per share 3,750,000 3,750,600
Welghitnd average rumbser of exuity shares far diubed esmings per ghirn 3,750,000 1,750,000
25 Contingent Liabifizles & Comingent Assots and Committmanis
The Company does not haw any Cortingent Liabilities & Comtingant Assels and Committinents at -
e Balince Shoot dale HIL
5 Employes Berefits
Al Comribitians to Defined Contribution plan recognised as sxponses far the VEAC g A5 urdar:
For tha Year ended For the Year endad
Aist March 2021 318 March 2020
Emgdonrer's Contributian 1o Provident Fund; 431 8337 50,100

6] The disclosur i per the Indéan Accounting Standard 19 Jind A5 19} *Employea Bevelits” are given balow;

|, Gratuity Flan

The Comgany has defined benofic plan comprising of gratuity, The present valug of abligation is determined an the bask of Actaris! valuation uieg the
Projected Unit Credit (PUCT petuariad method, which recognises sach pesind of service as givirg rise to sdditional unit af employes Benelit entitlement

and measune each Lot seperatedy ta build i the final abligation.

a) Change im the Fresent Valus of the defined benofit Dtligstion dusing the year:
L. Fresenit Valwe of the Obligation at the beginsaing:
L. Int=rest Cost:
3, Current Servica Casl;
A, Benefit Pakd:
5 Acwarksl [Gain]f Loss on the Dbgation:
Present Valus of defined Denefic Dbligation at the end of th yeis

k) Change In the Fair Walua of Plan Assets during the Year
1. Fair Valwe of Plam Ascets at the Beginning:
L. Evpectad Ruabarm an Plan Assets:
3. Empoyer's Contribution:
4, Benefs Pakd:
5, Actusrisl Gaing{Loms| on the Plam Assets:
Fair Value of Flam Assets 83 at the end of the year:

7a

For the Year endad For the Year ended
35t March 2021 3341 March 2030
1,204,352 1,213 487
50, B0% 53438
65,388 65,193
(&a,007) R0 000
[12 653} (37,766}
1,362,675 123352
Foor the Vear ended Fosf the Fear ended r
Jist March 2021 st BMarch J030
521017 522 BED
35,347 40,154
34,858 18 004
{&9,007) {40, Do)
(33,920 135,040
453,328 SIZ,0LF
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Yarn Syndicate Limited

Moty 1o the financsl stptements for the year ended 31 March 20010

For the Year ended

Far the Yo gnded
A1sk March 2030

F1st Mureh 2021
ci Reconciliation of Present valise of Defined Benefit Obligaticn and the Fair Value of Assets
1. Present Velue of Defined Bersf® Obligation: 135 BTG 1,294,352
2, Far Valug of Plan Assobs: A5 335 522,017
Mt fusetfLisbikty jrecapnived in the Balince Sheet; [ ] [¥¥2,335]
Fir tha Yoar ended For the Year ended
31zt March 2021 31zt March 2020
d] Expensas recognised in the statement of Profit & loss:
1. Current Service Codt 65,353 65,193
2. Warest Cist: 90,505 53,438
3. Ixpected Returm on Plan Addeli: [35.347) |43, 184}
4, Kgs Acuanial {GairlLLoss recogmised in the Poriod! 15,255 1274
Expremises recogreses] i the statement of Profit & boes; 11011 118,721
Far the Yoar ended For tha Yaar endad
Elst March 2021 3138 March 2020
&) Actuariad Assumgtices;
1, Discount Rarbe: 6505 T.00%
2. Salary Growth Hate: G008 B.00%
3. Fapected rate of réturn on Plan Assors: 550 7.00%
Fat the Year ended Fur the Year ended
31st March 2021 31 March 2020
f} Waturity Profile of the defined benaf cbigatsan ;
1, Amcust dua within One year [Curnent Liabfcg): 1,118.441 1070 946
2. e due ower JOne Year (Mo Cosrent Liakiling: P E R 113,366
Tatal Expected payments: 136 GTE 1,254,352
2 Wik Anatysis:

Company is expased to a amber of nsk in the defined benelit plans, Most Sgnilicant risk gertaining (o definsd Baadil plans smd mana geemen’

e=timation of the impect of these rik's wa & follows:

I} Interest Big

& decrease in bhe inbenest risk on Plas ASsels will incredss thi plan Lisslity.

iilh Lengealvity Risk:
The prasent wakse of the defined benefit ple lisbiity is cetculated by referance o the best estiman of the Mertality of plan participants both

during and at the end of the Employmant. &n kecréase in the fe axpactancy of the plan participants will increase plan Gabikty.

jii} Salary Growth Risk:

Thee Pressnt vaboe of 1ha dalired banefis pian liatidicy is caloulabed by reference bo the future salares of Plan particpants. &nincieass in the
salary of the plan participarts will increese the plan lability,

iv| Inuestment Risk:
The Prezent vakue of the defirsd benaf® plan lab#icy 15 calculated using o descount rate which & determined by relerence 1o markel yiekd at

the ered of the rapoeting pariod on Governmert Bonds.

i Sepment Beporting

An Dperating Segment is component al the Campany that engages in besiness actrvities from which it may earn revenues a%d inour espansas, inchading
revpres and sspenses that relste 1o transactions with any of the Company's ather corganents, and for which discrete finandal infarmatian s
wialable The Comnpiny & angaged in 1he business of esporting yaen snd febiic and sy other acthibos Incdidental thereto. Boand of Directors are
Chiel Qperating Decision Maker {CO0M) of the Compiny, Farther, thens ara no export sabkes and hence there is ne reporiable seccndicy segment

Arcordingly, these finandiol atersers ang not raflective of the information regured under Ind &5 108,

71
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I7 Ralanad Party Disclaiin

il Rebwed Party
1jeey Mmagement Fersonnel | 5oL Slveils Falndis - Charpenna &
Managing Diramar
$ni Kishraj Pafiocka Joiet Maragisg Cicer
bRkt of Ky Idanagomaal Parvenns) il
CEnesprive where Koy Banagenan Fersonnil & el ndilvn i
wgnificart réserce ¥, § Expiarts Limived
T Doetaly of neapsacsiiens suache with Refsbed Partien during the prar ;
[Matuse of Transactian v, Sheals Fatrdia Sriilishi Raf Patodia 5 Exparis Lid
| 202t 10320 I0-TH IS0 2RI0-T1 JE3-30
Paid
Loan Taben 113,000 LL30000 SEEH00 LIEng
o R - SN0 511,500 41550 S4EID
A G = -]
iLrain Rocowined - ]
Duistanding _
Ltan Takas 2833,707 e LaIn FEHE B0 [
|Loan iven . 1 : ]

41 The above reated arty nformaiion bave: bes discomen o the extast such pertes have basn idestified by the managament on the basis of ormation availsble This Ras bes rfid pen by
the husinrs

. Dustssusstantadosesinouned duringthepearasdinearieryaars thanetworthofthecomganyhasbeanenaded satitheBalinceSheetdate, irwols haabovnandt hausfaamarable
salis ardar racekaved from the customers sieps hive boen taken by the management ko get the fvourable orders frum the cusiomars.

Tekinglheaboreinocorcideration, Lhe menagementatthecompanybelievesthati hirom panyhast heabid mytocontinuedsoparationsasaguinge oncer in the foreseg ablefutureand
prametanothecsmpahaveagreeda niwsethefurdsesandwha eeg uiredand o rdinglythefirand el ateme mefortheygaren ded 1w barch 2020havetesn preparedambabass hat
the Company | & going congem;

i Mamagementhalesssthatthastabesi npacoountatihefa corstbatcanhavearnyan i e meactniangfrom 00N I Seand emiconthegreparatiomafth efnancas i emen sen deesurs
InchidingtheabilbyoftheCom panytocontinueasgoingconcern Howees, tisnotpossbletoreliabhestmatethefusumfiranc i bmpleatioesanisngliomthepandemicsituationont he

Compinpiopersu o maitisetioetumbanesoperations Further Shaimpactam s mantimoon i sgerocesand seohing ghentheuncensintissasiedledwith natursand
duration of the cument stysbon. The Lompany well coninus o csaky manitor any matenal changas in macrg-econcndc conditions and take sppropnisle measures 25 may be reguned

T3
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Chartered Accowntonis
ICAl Firm™s Registration Na. ; 322054

Fiishiraj Patodia
[Managing Diractaor|

Akt Agarwal DINOOZS0104

[Fartner|

ftembership Mo @ 305132

UDIN: 2130513 2AAACHEL22 Shesls Patodis
{Dirgctork
DIN:00276269

Place : Kolkata

Date @ 3002062021 B st
{Comparry Secretary|

T4

Jor and on Beholf of the Boord of Directors

K.Chhabeia
|Director]
DN DO30E0ED

B Biswas
[Chief Financiad Oificar)
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YARN SYNDICATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: 86/2/4, 8 N Banerjee Road, 19 Floor, Flat No.2, Holkata-700014
CIN NO: L51109WB1946PLC0D13842: Phone: 033 22652 163: Email id: yval@gyarnsyndicate, in
Webatte: www.varnsyndicate.in

Form Ho, MGT-11
_ PROXY FORM
fPurswant fo Section 1E5[6) of the Companies Act. 2013 and Rule 193] of the Compardies (Managmven! and AdmiaEiraton
Rules, 2074}

L

Begmetrrec) SllAPEIRE v eiinsiisn i i s i s b

AR R LR R e e by n g

Folia Mo § DP 1 and Cliemt 05 i e eeeeeer e s sre st eeeees

LfWe, bwing the Membenfsl of ..o Favei
appint:

]_. T T A e G L ¥ e iy ity e L T § R 1 8
E-Mail [T ......
Adldrees, ..

DR 1 i o e ol e Lt oy 0 T

E-Mail 1D ...
EL T [ T R

&% MSear proxy to attend and vede fon & poll) for me s and myfour behall Gt the 785 Ansgal Geoeral Meeting. io ke held
ocal Tuesday, 38092021 at 11.00 &AM at the registered office address of e Company at B6/2(4, § N Banerjee Road, st
Floor, Flat Ne.2, Kolkata-T00014 and ot any adjournment tereof in respedt of such resolutions and in swch manner as are
indicaced bedow;

I/ We wish my above proxyiwes) to vobe n the manner as indicated in the box belowe

Resolution Ke. | Description Far* Apalnsi* Abgtzin®
Urdinary Ordinary Hesolution

| Buslness

1. Adoption of Audited Financlal Siatemenis of the

Company for the Enancial vear endsd 319 March, 2021,
tagether with the Report of the Board of Directors ond
the Auditors therson

2 Appointmeent of Director e psce of Mrs, Shesla Patocdks
(QIRI0ETE269) who retires by rotation & being eligibie

odfer heraell for re-appointmient

Special

Prusdness

3 Grdinary Resolation
Appoiotment  af  BMa Neha Aman Merchant  (DIM:
O7454674) ns a Woman Direclor (lodependent & Nan
Bxecadivey of the Company for u tecm of five conreylive
PSS

&, Bpeoial Resolution

Re-appointment of Mr, Rishira] Patedia [DIN;
QO259104}), as Managing Director of the Company for
a term of thres years

i+
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Sigmed (s s S O s sisssaan w2021
Al
Farvenue
Snrip
Signature of first proxy halder Signature of second proogy halder Signature of tivird prosy hokler

* Please put a (V) in the appropriate column againgt the resolution as indicated in the Box. Alternatively, you may
menticn the mumber of shares in the appropriate column in respect of which you would like youwr proxy o vide, 1§ vou
leave all the colwimms blank againstany or all the resolutions, your prosy will be enbitled to vote in the manner as he/she
thinks appropriate.

Motes:
|. This Porm of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company, nof less than 48 hours belore the commencement of the meeting.

4. A proxy need oot be a Member of the Company

3. Imcase the Member appointing progy is a body corporate, the prowy form shouold be signed under rts seal or be signed
by an officer or an attorney duly authodsed by it and an authenticated copy of such authorisation should be attached to
the prosy form,

4. A person can act as proxy o behalf of such nember of Members not excesding fifty and holding inthe agoregate sot
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrving voling rights. Further. a Member holding
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, may appoint & single person s
proay and such person shall not actas proxy for any otler peraon or Member

5. Appointing a proxy does not preventa Member from atending the meeting in personif he /she 50 wishes:

6. In case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but nomes of all the joint holders shold ke
stated.
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YARN SYNDICATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: B6/2/4, B N Banerjee Hoad, 1* Floor, Flat No.2, Kolkata-700014
CIN Ny L1 LD9WEB1946PLCO13842; Phone: 033 22652163, Email id: vskrvarnsyodicale.in
Webaite: www, yarnsyndicate.in

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Folio Ne./DF ID/ Client
ID Nao.

HNo. of Bhares Held

[/ We record my four presence al the T5th Annual Geperal Meeting at the registered office address of
the Company at 86/2/4, 3 N Banerjes Koad, 1st Floor, Flat Ne.2, Kolkata-T00014 held on Tuesday,

28/09,2021 at 11.00 A.M

NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDER|S)
lin Block Letters|

SIOMATURE OF THE SHAREHOLDER[S}

NAME OF THE PROXY
[in Blocls Latters|

SIOMNATURE OF THE PROXY

ELECTRONIC VOTING | USER ID PASSWORD
SEQUENCE NUMEBER
[EVEN)

A5 PER  INSTRUCTION [ AS PER  [NSTRUCTION
SHEET SHEET

NOTE: You are requested to sign and handover this slip at the entrance of the meeting venue.
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ROUTE MAP FOR THE VENUE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF YARN SYNDICATE LIMITED
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